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(liya) duslal 5lud I/l

diWI | JgaVig dialall Ggon

Profit, Net Equity, Share Price and Dividends details
An amount of JD 392,000 was paid as auditors'fee for 2020
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Financial reports and charts
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2017
Profit before tax 22463850 30,012,905 28312913 33,531,000 41,839,023 52,437,458 57,896,798 49,950,415 (17783229
Profit after tax 21,004,698 28039900 26462297 31,280,583 37,398458  46,744335  51,698944 44,011,339 (58,186,759
Year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Equity 57465334 66,096,666 67568459 74223601 86,634,986 93348847 145169332 187,695014 172,520,016
Fixed Assets 17,750,141 177393784 20848849 19501016 18543871 21965209 29,351,887 29,504,005 981,948
Year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Share market value (Dinars) 3.15 583 484 7.25 1248 16 13 123 14
Share book value (Dinars) 287 264 2.7 297 2.89 3.1 237 3.13 287
60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000
0.96 1.1 1125 1235 1445 1555 237 3.13 287
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31/12/2019 g6 daariioll dullad dinul doladl oGl Jga dapiul blnn (@680 a5 e dsalaall (¥
blwunll @dao ¢po wyg las 31/12/2018 (8 duaiio)l dladl diwl) dladl bl gle ddaliaali(E
31/12/2019 (qd duaiiall duledl dbul] ygilall dde yai Lo ¢praa glayl yulao claclg gy dod clpl(o

.2020 olel) dapidl csblund G810 dlapng gauwlg ol cifo oabudl ALl —

il aal cpog jLatima) JUsYl dapil 15 a8y galell e dolell diall elainl aéce 528/05/2020 (g6 —
&Ly pouy via) g 9w Ui gl jaily xiligy A b o dapidl aawl ellol e dadlgall -
ltapidl ggals ¢ro (L) 222 6aladl olanl Cuwa aalgdl aauwd] jlisa (14)
Lauliny 28 gl f dwwlio g dygres ulnall Laly (il clela I 881 SIAIU GJaYl ulao ugdl -
Jlowwl) (@ aauwdl dala dralo Jaig odeljgaiall yarell yadu Lous doledl dlall cilis uaii jgilal
" iad g4y Lius uigljuilp 1l dApiu d4pill

s Lo dungau 05147 a8 gjlayl udao elainlade a509/06/2020 g0 -
clagllg &l glal jalall dap G 6 bindl dupadl ddUa el duslio -
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s gy Lo dungay 05148 ag) ojlayl o eladnlade a5 15/07/2020 g0 -
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30/06/2020 (g La% d4apiull a5l slalicl -

wngas gilol agyojlayl yulao elaialage a521/10/2020 (g0 -
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2020 Uq;.m_o_l"' Ig uuliJI S9 Ll pyéill

Jladin Judyl dap

(619110 dole daaluwo dAapw)

draunlall duaNl dAalael - ¢jlac

g allgdladl fHpall gy

wldlygila 1 (qo las Jg¥lygita 31 (e laa (a9l
2019 2019

* (34 eyl dJaco)

202 F=Y] ol |
* (34 oy daco) ﬂ el eilagagold

dJglaioll e culagagall

184,907,708 217,725,770 - 5 dwgalalié chgagall
29,351,887 29,504,005 981,948 6 “lheallgyiigetalioall

- 12,651,288 60,356 7 UguoNl oAkl @
674,552 271,028 - 8 sl Cljlatimyl
150,525 150,525 150,525 g B godalelldadly ww'};‘fﬁ‘tﬂ:
129,946 1,314,069 - 23 dlngo dud @ilhagago
863,871 - - 27 ohlatiny do160 cilods

- 1,324,638 2,112,697 13 (Al digao dro)l

- - 21,414,623 29-2 dB\lc g5 opln Uy
216,078,489 262,941,323 24,720,149 dglaiall i eilagagall £gono
dlglaiall lagagall

37,725,583 36,660,300 1,491,615 10 gt

- - 435,988,794 1 fulldatio Jgnl
21,871,531 25,470,280 708,229 12 (dlgdylaidigro 4o
58,148,244 36,089,900 139,056,867 29 @il el yplnl o Uglina
25,115,674 28321,809 4,159,118 13 Al daoan)
57,772,284 41435345 377,114 14 lgivllg1Jg Ggrin o 161l
200,633,316 167,977,634 581,781,737 dglaiall cilagagoll £gono
416,711,805 430,918,957 606,501,886 ilagagall £goa0
wlglingll g yraabugll Ggoa

60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 1 ULl
13,897,311 13,801,287 13,801,287 28 GVl iy
(20,734) (20,734) - Walell dardll @8 aalyial peil
236,323 1,273,511 (830) danyil glalyin|
68,260,520 112,640,950 98,719,559 8920l 2Ll
142,373,420 187,695,014 172,520,016 ool §gin £gano

dglaiall e cbglingll
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126,535,379 68,231,366 7,370,832
4,483,771 4,205,948 -

- 11,508,690 -
5,284,983 5,254,041 349,012
14,180,000 8,068,684 -

- - 106,844,907
150,484,133 97,268,729 114,564,751
78,069,047 81,031,947 2,237,518

- - 259,225,844

- 1,454,600 -
7,223,590 6,972,104 3,964,826
17,615,290 13,934,792 45,615

- - 49,029,529
5,153,232 24,716,224 -

380,655 580,991 -
15,412,438 17,264,556 4,913,787
123,854,252 145,955,214 319417119
274,338,385 243,223,943 433,981,870
416,711,805 430,918,957 606,501,886
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291 9,, 2020
* (34 el ae0) E—
705,571 326,191
(577,438) (17,268)
128,133 308,923
(3,218,7298) (11,587,558)
(1,417,104) -
- (441,445)
(4,507,699) (11,720,080)
(12,201,823) (6,033,243)
1,119,422 (29,906)
(15,590,100) (17,783,229)
(5,939,076) (40,403,560)
(21,529,176) (58,186,789)
65,540,515 44,265,398
44,011,339 (13,921,391)
1,037,188 (1,253,607)
45,048,527 (15,174,998)
0.75 (0.25)

alay]
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24
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diu] eI 6)Luadl)
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duau laJl dwaNldAalaodl - ¢jlac

angall ppaburadl ggon (g wlpeilyly

e
N alial aAlyioll alinyl : o

€gaaall 8)gaall "danyi Londll " olayl JlaJl yuly Uyl

dale]l h

Jala NIl |

187,695,014 112,640,950 1273511 (20,734) 13,801,287 60,000,000 UHEUoURI g )

2020 gitil

(13,921,391) (13,921,391) - - ; - ) LAl

(1,253,607) - (1,274,341) 20,734 - - AV Loliul Jaal

gla 31 g |

172,520,016 98,719,559 (830) - 13,801,287 60,000,000 ugila 31 b apay)

2020 Jovl

Jala ¢ NI a9 |

145,169,332 71,056,432 236,323 (20,734) 13,897,311 60,000,000 UHRUoUR g0 )

2019 L§ULL”

(2,795,912) (2,795,912) - - - - «34 olndl-cnao)

UPLa 31 (qd aunyll

142,373,420 68,260,520 236,323 (20,734) 13,897,311 60,000,000 225-2019 Jgyl

enbaeill

44011339 44,011,339 - - - - il auyll

1,037,188 ; 1037,188 - : - WAV Lol Al

187,421,947 112,271,859 1273511 (20,734) 13,897,311 60,000,000  Uetwlyavlgiloal

did) JANI

) ) ) ) daAlial sl claknl

323,200 323,200 oyl

(50,133) 45891 - - (96,024) - 30 alndl Lol Uuly 62Uj

4ol 31 qs |

187,695,014 112,640,950 1,273,511 (20,734) 13,801,287 60,000,000 ue \§o )

2019 Jgyi

(34) Ll g6 aung0 42 2019 JgIl ygsta 31 g duariiol dulladl diul 008y (g 6alel aix
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Ul g3t 31 g duaiiol] dinl)

2019
£ (34 el dae0) 2020 e
(15,590,100) (17,783,229)
67,052,340 49,121,525 11
1,936,338 441,445 1123
1,883,682 1,663,029 5
4,024,737 80,163 12
984,603 1,857,467 13
(9,124) (10,000)
(1,142,096) -
1,300,907 983,531 24
13,076,051 6,033,243
1,094,077 3397,99 10
1,417,104 -
(50,133) -
75,978,386 45,785,170
16,523,257 5,312,845
(907,289) (5,625,094)
(5,431,354) 12,032,109
(3,357,298) (1,199,817)
200,336 (476,648)
435,013 16,320,486
83,441,051 72,149,051
(7,977,422) (45,931,726) 22
(1,331,849) (1,151,674) 24
74,131,780 25,065,651
3,224,056 928,670 335
863,871 -
(7,391,789) (1,450)
- (21,414,623)
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aledilollasl A Jaldupd Jud diul §jLusll
senaeill
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Syl g s
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(8 il
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\g}iidjg_w ('J'mﬂ

dijly 003
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G Al 6nji
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(20,657,901) (4,301,284)
1,545,621 -
(22,416,142) (24,788,687)
(13,076,051) (6,033,243)
(55,341,113) (139,654,963)
- (1,522,098)
- 131,134,865
(672,601) (1,471,008)
(69,089,765) (17,546,447)
(17,374,127) (17,269,483)
57,772,284 (22,535,141)
- 41,435,345
1,037,188 (1,253,607)
41,435,345 377,114

5

2161l anA 1e)) &jgil Ggang del culapn Ellal) egdaall 201l qoln
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102,067 31,749 U1alhg0 o)
381,792 24,986 loiiog A duss illol
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1324638 2,112,697 UaVldlgIo-daaine aod
29,646,447 6,271,815

UAgil pladh aus haing ¢ulg el g jganall 1601 aillaa Jios

€ico s



2020 ygpirellg Rulill ggiudl pyaill
:dedg Lol duladVl LAl nn Ao (gle dapadl gl

JgVl ygila 31 (g dualiiall diwl)

2019 2020 SR JISTRN 6

- - WOl giLa ¢ro Jg¥l gd aayll
- 334,567 diudl YA yanAo
- 334,567

Elgilgalg Ggainll g6 165 (14

Jg¥lygila31 s laa

2019 2020 CSRNJIETRN [
477,717 615 dgaall qé 165
40,229,454 376,499 Egidl g dyla wblna
728,174 - * &gl g2 &lag
41,435,345 377,114
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Jlua 2,700,000 daudy laiNac (gany egpirad ¢l Elu o Uop alo dislail 16ey didgall L]l dapl cuolg
2019 JgVl ¢pupia 1 68 Jg¥l g alaw 11ug dailall o) LJqLuw LJJ_EDJJJ U 108 NG 120G LS'U_)Jl

Jlaul caloljll (16
Ul gaill (e ang.all @l gl 9 g aill palill agéc yaye a5

JPNygita 31 (qu Laa

2019 2020 CSRNJIESRN 6
1,454,600 - Jghiadl - glag ol palil il
11,508,690 - Jglhiallpue — gagaill pall ol
12,963,290 -
cralhgoll) doadll dlai 6180 yarnAo (17
e dnlnl dapadl gl q gdladl il ddgaul puleald Cuus ppalhg.all doaddl Gla yan Ao olbudsl gl
s lah colh yanAall

Jg¥lygita 31 (g8 Laa duaiiodl dil)

2019 2020 SN JIETRN B

5,284,983 5,254,041 WOl ygila o Jg¥l (g Las apapll

1,300,907 983,531 dudl YA Ejatuall

(1,331,849) (1,151,674) dil JNA £g920]1

- (4,736,886) 2ulldslio Jguol (Ul corini oalc]

5,254,041 349,012 dindl dylad (g9 1papl
dyjlgiaNl calalyioyl

(@nyall llamgialy laic el @) sl al g duidl dylgiayl olalisyl g Lo

JgVl ygila 31 g Lo daaiioll dil]

2019 2020 (sl
3% 3% anall Jigo
3% 3% Lilgpl @8 gludiurallgaill
2.39% -6% 2.39% -6% OlaylJa20
55 0w (40 (g i uad J4) 2.93% a2y 20 Ul g ic Uajad adig Ugiw 5% L jlacyl yuliéo g 93
lareylag
55 ¢pw oo (Wlgiuw A (JAJ) 2.87% Jaeos 20 I ¢pw aic bioggai (aedig bgiuw 6% | jloe Nl jubdo : by
laareylag
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2020 ygpirellg Rulil gl pyail

LAY ey Al o dsell il dylgiaylclalioyl o 61alg) il gyl gs dihaal dgaeal lpeil vl
.Ul diued! &L @JaJU 6aan o]l dediadl calolfil]  gle 15§75 18 AL (gpall

2019 Jg¥l ygsta 31 2020 Jg¥l gsta 31
uasill aabjl abl uasill RABN IR
730,312 (730312) 2,572 (42,572) (1% duuis po’) ansll Jaeo
(730,312) 730,312 49,287 (49,287) (1% iy o) oilgl g6 qabiuall gaill Ja2o
194,400 (187,044) 4,885 (34,885) (1% dunis &%) Olawodll Jieo
ilgaiwl plao disla aoi (18
Jlyglu 31 (g8 laa Jg¥lygita 3T (g8 Laa
2019 2020
Jadl gl Jadl s Jal gl Jadl s Wl
- 2,494,482 - - Lol &ujgill jaladl gl dlgaiwl
- 14,180,000 - - &jg Ul dgan dniiil e dlgaiwyl
2,104,312 2,077,370 - - 1ijgug551 Loy Lge Algaiuwl
5,964,372 5,964,372 - - jaun (gde dlgaiwl
8,068,684 24,716,224 - -
G}Ai disla 6.ua)l (19
Y ygila 31 qélaa
Jg¥lygs G L
2019 2020 i
7,972,548 102,428 agiw lilao anio
6,110,252 1,382,868 daniwo ylno
1,812,708 2,718,153 dlaino wldlfd] ando
603,454 579,221 croabuadl sblaf
38,396 23,083 daniwo 1ilgo
76,448 76,448 duapNlaleola]l 0wy yando
45,000 - Gjlayl udao clacl §lslao
111,594 - aolunyl el Ggaio
70,470 5810 welainvlglasadl cblol
423,686 25,776 N
17,264,556 4,913,787
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Gleuall gola (20
alpNljalno X

Lol oAVl eulalpyljalno | Jauisd .6aaalal dsUallg (Jueall) RUIUI&W ¢po ) JAuw Wiyl deganall Algs
Lapeg 6yAdl culeno ¢pe dildl dualadl e &Jladlg dyjlaiiwyl caljlae]l &u o aUy)l

cNaellgoagaell po whlpNl caiun| X
doaAll InginAg dunudpl alniiallg ddgVl dudlpeal Glguwyl cuun cNaell o agdéell ¢po clalpVl cin’ aiy
: .o Lo clalpU Galyiel cubgig
d2a0ial dUall &ul )l )
—_— —_— (NG
2019 2020 2019 2020 -
dunlwyl duslyell Glguwdl
705,571 326,191 - - gVl Guiul
705,571 326,191 - -
Jo¥l ygita 31 g6 duaiiall diwl) RIBNJEE
2019 2020 AL Gljicyl cuég
705,571 326,191 15gjgs0 8o lay Gjico clalyl
705,571 326,191

;o Lot c)aell R0 agaell o dyaslei lolfUvlg dasleil Jgndldrall aoill Jga wilogleall

Jg¥lygla 31 qé las CSEINESRNE
2019 2020
63,579,520 - dis10 003
2,882,502 2445514 Gl digro 6oyl g dajrodl dasleill Jgnl
(966,250) - Gl dislhh 6aoyl (g dajarall daslell culolfiyl
65,495,772 2,445,514

lalpNU GlyieNl dwluwg 12Vl ealoljill. g
Loaic eilall GlyicVU deganall 0983 . Juael R0 opall xdell (g6 aanall laall (e 2l @il juld ai
ol duli cusgigden Jga wlogleo W Jganl g Jael) doad gl delw e dplaul gl 096
duwlpul dladl el lalpyb Glyieyl dwlug dolall &8l gy L3 06 Lay. e Naell o doprall ag.éell q cladl

dopall agaeol) duuwlagll
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Jo¥l ygita 31 (gé Laa

2019 2020
577,438 17,268
577,438 17,268

JgVl ggila 31 (g6 duaiioll diul)

2019 2020
607,923 584,558
461,167 5597121
102,135 3,262,223

- 906,957
340,335 511,289

- 265,667
218,509 146,500

- 5,982
29,010 17,372
221,373 25926
141,973 61,009
108,149 121

2,262 1,672
43,838 123,790
165,265 64,738
776,789 12,633

3,218,728 11,587,558

eilenall 44147

yNhL

Wlieogdalaiwo ilgo

dyjlayl cayjuagll

SRINJISSRN 6

Jg2Vlg rilgyl

Gllitiwlg dudmo Uleil

Al wigacgwyno
(UAdldypalac lo) dupa wylno
clepig aabilel
dallalgogalgo

yaw ylino

CENSIVIEY

Julaylno

&olio

duinoe wylno

dalaiuo ojlglgalgo

dxtpan 0gm)g YaUNig b
ailelablg calaaiw]

dylaj wloe wylno

GAl

JAl dppd Bgpno

2020 ygpirellg Rulil gl pyail

(21

(22

(23

dupn Jaeogldegonall gqngIJUitbuaqu dcganaldlla) calpadi gle el Jadl dupd gpnas GlyicVl aly
AdJladl diowuld dupAa s gl gde (GulA ulg dlola duJladl diwd] dedgiadl dapud] anpall dug il Al

€ico
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AV obidl A aJlg 6jluaddl gl audl g Y9 U pieall

JgVygila 31 (g6 Lo duaiioll diul)

2019 2020 SR JIESRN 6
8,962,855 46,436,803 diul) dypAll gpno
(1,511,954) - dlng ol Al dupn Cagpaoyil
(1,511,825) (6,033,243) &ulaslio wlgago e agpAll
5,939,076 40,403,560 Al dla (g0 1oyl

ol Las cla ddl NA Al dupa jaindo gle dlaladl dpadl o) -

gV ggila 31 (g6 laa duaiioll diul)

2019 2020 (Bl
7,223,590 6,972,104 Al dl (96 Aoy
8,962,855 46,436,803 il VA @il
(9,214,341) (45,931,726) il JNA degéaadl JAl dupe

- (3,512,355) &ull alio Juol gl datini sleall
6,972,104 3,964,826 ddl dlas (g8 Aoyl

dcganallanyalldgindl Jaldupa Jreal deganalldjlal calpadi gle 2o Jal dupd Ggpn as Glyicl ai

-]l diuul) dpall us eupl gde guni gidlg dlols dulod! diuul) dedgiall

dlago duypa wlagago
;o L el diudl VA dlago dupn calagago gl dlnlal dayndl )

CSRIN JIOTRE[Y]
Ugils 31 o las (ol caimi dalel LA upls T golas
2020 gV &ull dalio Jgunl 2019 il
(4,730,827) 3,416,758 1,314,069 ango dugpas ilagngo
- (4,730,827) 3,416,758 1,314,069
CSRIN JIOVRE[Y)
31 ¥ las ) . a1 @ laa
- i LA i
2019 Jg¥l ygila - 2019, gl
1,314,069 1,184,123 129,946 ango dugpds ilagago
1,314,069 1,184,123 129,946
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ddago dupA eloljill
Lo Lo c0la diudl JNA dingo dupe ololill e dlnlaldapnl o)
CSEYN/JIETRN [
09531 g Las . o 095 1 g9 Las
2020 Jgul aornialeal Al J5 el 2020 Gt
- - (4,205,948) 4,205,948 dndo dupd Clolfll
; - (4,205,948) 4,205,948

ficganall 15 30 gisiladl 158,01 \ gl g ol oy i lal 64161 08 sl Ayt RLi0 Jiags

31 @ las )

.alapiUl Jaa gle dlainadl dslayl blpall jady Las

L.SL]JJS”JL.LJJJLJ
. Ul @ laa )
diudlh NA poill <. il
2019 gVl yygila Ui 2019 @l '
4,205,948 (277,823) 4,483,771 dlagall dugpA i olalfdl
4,205,948 (277,823) 4,483,771
diudl auy o aaudl duan (24
JVygiu 3T (g8 laa
2019 2020 RN ISR E
44,011,339 (15,174,998) (lza) diudl ay)
60,000,000 60,000,000 (oaw) aawll el anpall lhwgiall
0.75 (.25) diwdl gy opo aaudl dnn
0.75 (.25)

dnodoll aaudldiny

3T g8 lasd aauw ygulo 60 delwlg gl aawllaac (qle diwdd aupl awudl aupl o aaudl dnns Olwial o]

Ja¥lygila 31 (g laa

2019 2020
18,373,330 4,222,095
18,373,330 4,222,095

2020 Jg¥l ygila
dlaino cilolji] (25

RN JEERE[E

dai cilaa
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2020 ygpirellg Rulill ggiudl pyaill

ol Ly Jladd 42165 cilizolilalilé g

Ja¥lygia 31 (g laa

2019 2020 (Ua¥y

14,159,381 1,154,252 dadielizols

14,159,381 1,154,252

dia 5 06 relnll lacg Bigog dupall dladl datno ool ggea &op claglig &l Gilabl lall dsysh cioly
2014920132012 0lg.cl ¢c dapill (e JAa dupd Ay diosaiallg oleiallg Jaal dupd 6)5la g Jalkicyl
ol cudgdl e (@6 (Ugslal laybidiuiog deganall 6jlal (¢l) ¢lag . Uyl jlua 2,900,947 glias 2017g 2016 2015g
9 ¢ : AT

261 Laojllg oMcl &liadl g dapill ol juail dAno e dlas cylyd cajun 2021 diaw (o danJl diadl JaA
3AU dapiul crols «ildgys (Al dil (qé ddlaall o Jaul dupes 61l giog jlisa @l 780 &lui 6uan calolye
Laule dipiodl @ladl &uan &8 danyJl iall YA dapill ciold dusla abanio

JAUUicU JA! dupa §550 jlesil crasaiallg 2020 glpia 4 aglis jabadl (alicl da s dapil cialiwl
&0 g dupAl AL Al jUiclg o iyl L 208,424,439 &luo  Juaeill 1232018 olell e dapid]  gdlall
dapill dulnog il Lisa 41,684,887 £luo g dapidl  ale da~intall dupAll of juiclg « gyl jlsa 210,068,806
daano eyl 189 1 .ol ]l ae Lo (Ul jlua 35,477,398 gliay diasbudl cales )l il 1o dupAll Ly
dcganall g)lal ¢y lag .dlgaial peg dgaiall calagllg guill Gjlail aladl daph Jigol  gle jandl iy dolaul

) 113 dule dagpoall dupall cled] Aol gl casgll Ui s wgslal Laybitiuog

Layl260 Jaa dupe ciligyas a4l dulaog 2018 duledl Al cre lajls lanb eilewallg Jaldupd bl ciols
a5 daanall g el relnlU dapiul eiols a5 daanall g iiall crelnll dapiul caols cun gL 35,477,398
JUua 35,522,639 a1g duguul el dapiudl cuold

Ll Aays Ailge (e aaleuall dupay dulaall o 61511 &iad JAal dupd 611 (gle (ggca ap dapidl cuold
Q9 deajo dapudl dinyd ¢jle (ugiLall LayLuiiunog dAapil L"Si}__lq /2019¢ 2018g 2017 culgiuudd ¢ppad! ¢l

00 U5 1 A5 R dat e Auged16g.00 90 (ulw Eligg i i) Ryl alad dspi) Gilul eLpidl ols
UAugel ddlnallg codlaglig il 6)lail drula]l jalall dapig Kol — drula]l jaladl dapd (&ijgild jalall dayds
.gUJJTJLigJ 2,493,160 gjlago

Wlaall ol ¢ cua dan ddle (ggeadl cuwAa dulaol ¢glo (Wgilall layjiniwog deganall gjlal Lﬂgf)_)q i
Adapi] cpasbudl elapudl aledn (o dand aiuw dedn 4i vlg gl
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2020 ygpirellg Rulil gl pyail

GV culalpyl (26
UV ygila 31 (g6 Las duaiiall diul)
2019 2020 SN JIETRN B
(12,013) (35,665) Jleuwig dlac caldgys
531,123 - dylac calladiwl gu ol
(3,542) - doylw wlgiw Wylno
(5,739) - dil Jguol cilepo o byl
609,593 5,759 GAT
1,119,422 (29,906)
eljlaiiwM doado culed (27

o Los eljladiw] doadall calesll Junlad o)
e iyl = Jog.gw ) g dapin Ejiie gpio (g8 jlaiimyl draniall dUall gl ol dapn cuold
10 2layiwlg 2019 ole JYA egpitall clell aig.do160 cilears (i Lisa 863,871 dias Lo g8 dapiul cuols

dcgorall @l
)Nl gualiay| (28

A 10% duly og g Cuflall b g iuall el (40 abgad ,aly Lo Gluindl e @ deanall @llall Jiad
cualinl Obudal al cun pambuall e &ujg il bl pé g.ag ealapiul ggstad lag dasludl ulg iudlg diul
Hgile) den Al lad deslil eilapiulg laiimy Jusyl dapil duaaiall ddlad! bl a5l (e el gual

Ul el

dsaell cali WlpaVl go cyloleallg 50l (29

(d4yisito 6pn deAlAdl elapiul) dasiiul alapill go el (qilg dévell ¢ili Gladl g ciloleall ail
Wija gf WA 1l ) (@l calanl go clloleall ELG caiaud Las .dapill g Llell 6yl clacly ¢aaluallg
@l eild GlpnVl go calloleall Ingping dwluw gl §)layl caaslg 1dg.Colpnl oia e

dsMell culi Slpn VI o 6.10)V129-1
:1ng.all Uladl fArall ol (6 (opalg dylaidisio a0 g6 dajaadigdddell el clanl 20 60ml yaslo (gl Lags

Jg¥l ygila 31 gd Las LUV Ll
2019 2020

s el lal o Lglinal

138,611,769 gy LS g A5y

400,516 «lAyi- alleall &1l jAla gino

15,757 *aliar) &alga ciicuglian Ul

18,335 #5lp Jugla Gl gl
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2020 ygpirellg Rulill ggiudl pyaill

- 10,490 Y qlitigy al gl
21,552,201 - #,0..0.3-p.0. i dolel Gjlail ojll
10,939,333 - sl jalal dap
3,253,973 - w60l debrung Lol A4y

255,187 - syl Glguwdl elns — dJliall
89,206 - s G3ala)l Uno - duliol
36,089,900 139,056,867

- oVl dapill @l laey a5 gl delil colapill o dig ln ol ampl oMl calapiul Jiad
Al (148 o0 aaule papmo\ (g lao aail cun pilo i Jaiy deganall gy odel ojg b ol colbpinl
.deganaluddNe gi Spn gag gjgaeall Jua

Ja¥lygia 31 (g laa AN JETRTE

2019 2020

dsNe el Glpal @l g linali29- 2
- 49,029,529 selleall Qi jAlall &ilno dapl

49,029,529

oMl dapiul gl laew a3 il destil dapiul ol dag Lnall Gyl oMl d5yp sl Jiad +

d8)lc gi Byln (g0 Ays 29-2
daph oVl laiaph &0 A awslasl — dfupodl daniall cbigdl — dvulall jAlall dayh cropl 2020 133 ayli
62506 Uayal i .( Uyl jLisa 19,062,748) 1391 26,886,810 &liay« laulé — cliag g guill Gjlail drulaijalall
2y Ul Ganiwyl auli (@ gf o9l dapill cilin 1oy dapiul s o apadl alaw ai.Lgiw+27 jguly 5 Jiea
Akl Joal Ulaislal 63 gyla 2,351,875 (apall gle Gaall pég daniuall algallciel 20291314 49

ds)e euld By yAgys 29 - 3

20 LAY @Blail — ¢lould dpja — cliagilg &oll §)lal druladl jalall dayh cropl 2020 (Ul copici 12 (g6
il @ 5% Jre.as 6296 UApal LanisNga 123,213,977 &l aiaw) g4910 Liwuds Logljasily 20Uqu « o9l Laiay
2026 UL i 12 (6 Ré (6 1 GLaniml dugli d g 031 @il s ro) @il a6 1o (apdll sl aiy

julp 20U oVl laiapd o Ay dislail coluAagilg &l Gjlail jalall dapd caopl 2020 Lgul_l_ll CpL 23 \SL_Q
18 po yAapalh sl aly diudl (q957 Jaeoy 61518 yapall Janiy gNga 26,498,560 &liay «xioy) g5y Liwgds cogl
2026’ U (i 23 (96 GaALwYI Ayl gf 01 dpiiull po il gle 2y dsypil

dS)c el wlas ko wNoleill
AN Jobidl JAJlg il gl eupl by (g6 dayaadig dsiell calh calandl o eolloleall yaslo (gl Laud

UgVl gl 31 (g6 dxmiiol i) SNy
enloleall deun g
2019 2020
59,661,338 - cleuo 0.,0.3—p.,0. 0 dole]l §lail oyl

s €ico




2020 ygpirellg Rulil gl pyail

41,368,975 - leuo GlreJl-jAlall day
4,572,479 - leuo 1l dunwg iadl d4y
1,329,272 - louo Gyl Glguwyl €lind - dtiall

395917 - leuo yalélljlino - dJliall
338,024 - wleyo 9.0.Ub g)e ¢5Ug5 JUg)
36,089,900 -

Llell d&yaaiill 6jlayl Réliog Lilg)
202 Jg¥l ygilh 31 g duaitiodl dil la) deslil calapivlg dapiu) Well dyuaiill 6layl géliog Liilgy ciely
()l 2019: 3,214,320) jLis1 6,034,992

Jladl puly @082l 0

30,000,000 jJlaéas @&5piul Jlo (w) 63U 2018 lpin 3 gl 160t laclaisb dalell wé dolell dlall ciyb
€9910llg y epnall dapidl Jlo gl awayd Gigaadl UVl o (il jLizs 30,000,000 &luo dlaswy JYA o aaw
(0w (JA) aalgjlya) L.SU.JJTJU..:IJ 60,000,000

duladl wigaVig phaldgll (31

auladl lga lmohiAiwl el dulil galdal) deganall bpeil
glaiylphalho -

dguudljhlao -

ggudljalao - -

s Gpng calwbudldeganadl laal oMl paldal ¢ro JA) deganall gagei Jga cilogleo vyl ia ¢
Jladl gl deganall glalg palaall Gjlalg

Halaall 6jlay olell jUayl
a3 uilao 05 pnlaall deg.anall )3y olejUal doyliog ®idg he dole 6jg1n) Jgduo dpiul djlal ulao o
0965 .deganall (1) palaadl Gl clwluw d&dlog &ivg e Agguuad! danl (gag glaldall 6)la] dind Guowly
Lailadiol Jga Gyl pudao Ul dadAiio i gop dialloia

19139 Ilg.i g59Jg deg.anall laanlgl gl taliall Jalnig 11 6120 paliall deg.anall 13l bl
.dcgngallagandljglad oac ylan] lalsdlio ai ¢pog ibldall el yoyeill g e dadvo

dnsilg Goudl g (a8 dlnladl Gl (Al dyga Ggury palaall 6l dalaily lwluw dealo ai
6Ly dwld) dfu pgdnd @l GVl laei gl el elinvlg puleallg cupill YA (Lo deganall 6)lal (b1a) .deganal
" g dlagall lialgig 0jga alago Jb amaiy cuyn dalaiog

HalAal 3] alliwg clehaly ol g 10 dislyay iyl 0Us duars dejliay dcganall o) dealiall din 0gai
laanlgi (gl paldalb Gleb lawd paldal gy olell juayl Wlas (garo dealias 0965 Las deganall (g
899 0987 Iyl Layga chal (@8 dcganall ool denlpal din acay (@Al G8ail aws 0géy dcgaall
5 JuU 0980 Las paldadl §jlab dnladl aulgalg clelinyl Jga dnlig dyga cilealo clab @Al il

dealyall dind gl olealall 0da il Jga

Yol phlAo
dcganallgo Joleiall Gpinllgl Juaell £lég ,01c clia dllo 6)Llud]) deganall Apei aldo laiiyl daldo  Jia]
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2020 ygpirellg Rulill ggiudl pyaill

diy20,0039 Egidl 1) &ilagg dylall bl cro ) Ay paliall 0da alil daslell dilolfb ddlo dlab
oAl diyro61m)lg gpalg dyla

Las glaidyl poliad cibgagalilal yayedi ol craw (@il ggndll dasdll dulall cilbigagal) dajralldasdl Jiad
2 g Lo gag 6ang-adl dladl cabdl ag) b (g

(96 La4 dnjag)l dasdll

2019 2020 Uy
40,957,628 376,499 “giul 1) ®iagg dyla ciblus
25,470,280 708,229 ol dyyla duro a0
22,837,929 3,672,254 ol dipro gy
89,265,837 4,756,982

dunSlnAdlduayilgvldan (e Juac JAatdapall ol duud) digung glaiivlipalia) deganall oy’ fili
wde J1 5l ety amiln il e Yaell g Jglj gl Jgallg dclin U dualyisyl galiall Ui (o Lo Lafiac 61cla)
.0Ual ¢puo ga Lot lnuwgVl Guudl dalnio 8 YladiVlaldo (gle 515 a8 gy bislien . glaiivl paldo

Gpalg dylal digao a0i
YlaVl Plus yuls (e Joei (gl el aaiodl (9) a8) ddladl plaild (gl jieall deganall Gunj
.d_i:!la_llra_oﬂl ] . . . . ” ra_oj_”ﬂ_a_ci (.le . . ro . e . L . ”q . . . I

dapiitadl glaisyl paldo (astna (gle lel disredl a0l guani ai dedgiall (laisyl hlud guls able) =
Lo dJgdeoq duupdi lail durall o) dedgiall filuadl o o deganadl cuasd lial . aoil jlaci (alcg
daall, a0l SluAll (s Ay

wlelg Wl ggilal ro dpiall YA drall aouleslyyui/ ciledll ale el cuacidosgiol §luadl cuyl -
26 AUl GjLuddl (i ol .6pial odm JNA dpidall dliladad dusutil laiivl 15uag 2019 gl ygita 31
.40 v eNaell 6260 (alc 158 Ly (Al aaisyl Jolgc (ale cuadl ologleo il uaei) cuac

dawslpenlddiniall s dyadleil calagngaligdylailldiiall aoil o glaisyl dalia) quasdl areill ol Lad

2020 Jg¥l ygila 31 (o Las

(9 Lo dyyioa)l dayd)l
2019 2020 AR
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deganall Gl yl gl dllo cilagago gl 1611 @167 JYA (10 laigud i @il dulall laibgling diasiiallg
awn’ Loaic ilolill clog ) duéla dgu Ladla aaing deganall yf ¢po ooyl jaé 14l (g6 ¢Lasi dlguul)
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Lol cabgliaall dasleill colblaniml gl Lags
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SR JIETRN 6

- (45,615) (45,615) 45615 asls 03
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- - - - AT sl 6n)i

2019 Jg¥lygala 31 (qo Llaa
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dalell dagdll dyyion]l dasdll
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daaNJl &laayl (33

Gaaniall dsUall gl cadall d5yls desli)] laias gl loge deganall cuéli . drogaell dulall gl Lany
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i el al al 3 Rog duuinall Jgndl golal dlell datdllg egdrall Jlaall gu Goll Jia ol
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laesy aiy ol (iUl clpiulg guul dislasy sg clpiul jew 40 cjng Algaimyl auli o pgungs Guanil dbls
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2019 (Ul ygila T
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LA B9 dwgalall e wilagagallg sl JAadsy (quayilisa 1,291,514 &lio clalnb slyicyl
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Twenty-ninth Annual Report 2020

Company Identity
Al-Egbal Investment Co. (PLC) (“EICQO”) is an investment company with subsidiaries in the Hashemite
Kingdom of Jordan, Cayman Islands and the United Arab Emirates. EICO’s investments are specialized

in the manufacturing and distribution of molasses, and development and construction of renewable
energy projects.

Our Vision

To be a dynamic investment company with growing influence in the global market.

Our Mission

Maximizing shareholders’ returns whilst actively carrying out our positive role in social and economic
development.

Our Values

« Commitment to excellence.

« Ensuring significant financial growth to our partners.

« A competitive and comfortable working environment for our employees.
« A vital contribution to the development and prosperity of society.
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Members of the Board of Directors

Mr. Tamir Saeed
Chairman
United Brands Of Shisha Bidoc Limited Co

Mr.Stuart Brazier
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
United Brands Of Shisha Bidoc Limited Co

Mr.Bassem Lotfy
Members of the Board of Directors
United Brands Of Shisha Bidoc Limited Co
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The previous Board of Directors resigned on 29/11/2020

Mr. Manuel Stotz
Chairman

Mr. Yazid Mufti
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

Mr. Nael Kassar/Member of the Board of
Directors

Mr. Desmond John Naughton/Member
of the Board of Directors *

Mr. Ahmed Adel Badreldin
Member of the Board of Directors

Mr. Saleh Rajab/Member of the Board of
Directors

Mr. Nabil Alrantisi/Member of the Board
of Directors

Mr. Khaleel Mamoori/Member of the
Board of Directors

Mr. Desmond Naughton was appointed as a vice-chairman of the Board of Directors and as a representative
of United Brands Of Shisha Bidoc Limited Co. and then he was resigned on 24/01/2021.
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Chairman Message

Dear EICO Shareholders,

As the world continues to wrestle with the
ongoing pandemic, there are clear signs of a
light at the end of the tunnel as vaccines are
rolled out around the world. Employment and
GDP estimates are constantly being revised
upwards and governments are indicating more
relaxed summer restrictions with travel plans on
the minds of most.

Al Fakher has weathered the COVID-19 storm
very well in comparison to others, and our
expanding operating model in the key markets
have enabled us to capture additional value due
to changing consumer behaviors as they have
shifted more to home consumption. Though our
aggregate volumes were negatively impacted,
our revenues were maintained as an improved
geographic mix increased revenues per unit
sold.

Shares in EICO were suspended in May 2020
following an offer from United Brands of Shisha
Bidco to acquire the company. This transaction
was successfully completed in November last
year with UBOS Bidco paying JOD 14 per share.
In early January 2021, Desmond Naughton, our
CEO decided to leave the organization. Des’
contribution to the business during the last few
years was instrumental in shaping Al Fakher
into the international organization it is now. Des
was an exceptional leader and | was personally
honoured to have worked with him and wish
him well for the future.

A new CEO will join the business in May 2020
and will lead EICO during its next chapter of
development.

New branding and packing was introduced in
our key markets. The new look and feel was well
received by both partners and consumers and a
reliable supply chain, at a volatile time, ensured
that supply remained uninterrupted. 2020 also
saw the successful launch of a number of new
products that encourage our consumers to
indulge in mixology. Both “Bases” and “Sparcs”
have been well received by our core consumer

franchise and we would expect volumes to grow
as the products are rolled out to more markets.
As consumer behavior pivoted towards more
home use, our US online business continued to
grow and the habit of on line shopping in many
markets allowed us to team up with a number
of key accounts to facilitate a home delivery
service.

Overall, the business continued to build on its
historical strengths of consistent quality and
availability, whilst investing in new capabilities
and offerings to ensure that we continue to lead
the global shisha category. | am encouraged

to see that the company coped so well at an
unpredictable time and commend the resilience
of the team that has been built in the business.
Focusing on talent, we continued to strengthen
the team, and now believe that we truly have

a world class leadership team which can guide
and execute the exciting future plans that we
have. Below the executive level, we were also
able to upgrade our human resource in our key
end markets, as senior positions were filled in
the US, KSA and Europe.

In the regulatory sphere, | am pleased not note
a significant improvement in the level and
quality of our engagement with regulators and
the shisha community. These conversations

are back up by both scientific and empirical
evidence, and have made us a global leader in
this arena.

| would like to end by thanking all of our
employees across our different subsidiaries for
their hard work, passion and dedication which
has helped to deliver the sustainable growth in
the business that we have experienced. Thank
you also to all of our partners for being a vital
part of our continued success. Finally, thank you
to our Board of Directors for playing their part
in helping to guide this great company through
challenging times.

Tamer saad
Chairman
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Report of the Board of Directors
Company’s main activities:

Al-Egbal Investment Co. (PLC) is an investment company with subsidiaries/operations in the Hashemite
Kingdom of Jordan, Cayman Islands and the United Arab Emirates. It specializes in the manufacturing
and distribution of flavored molasses and the development and construction of renewable energy
projects. It owns the following companies:

1. Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and Agencies Company Ltd.
2. Spectrum International for Renewable Energy Ltd.

Geographic locations of the Company and respective number of employees:

Company headquarters: Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.

Address: Amman — Um Uthaina - Sa’ad Ibn Abi Waqqgas Street - Building No. (39).
P.O.Box: 911145 Amman 11191 Jordan

Telephone: +962 6 5561333

Fax: +962 6 5561339

Email: info@eqbal-invest.com

Website: www.egbal-invest.com

Number of Employees: (7)

Number of Branches: None.

Paid-up capital: JOD 60,000,000.

The company is registered with the Ministry of Industry and Trade under the number (218) as of
1/6/1992, with the national identification number (200022790)

Size of the capital investment of the company:
The total capital investment of the company as shown at the end of the year 2020 amounts to JOD 4.7
million.

Number of employees based on their qualifications end of 2020

The number of employees at Al-Egbal Investment Company and its subsidiaries reached a total of 722
employees as of 31/12/2020. The following are the number of employees categorized according to their
qualifications as of the end of 2020:
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Al-Egbal Invest-

ment Company Al-Fakher Company for

Qualification in the Hashem- Tobacco Trading and
ite Kingdom of | Agencies in the Hashem-

Spectrum International
for Renewable Energy in
the Hashemite Kingdom

Jordan ite Kingdom of Jordan of Jordan

and its Affiliates abroad

PhD 1 1
Higher Diploma

Diploma

Less than high school

Staff Training Courses for 2020

AlFakher Tobacco Factory- United Arab Emirates- Ajman

The Course

Training on Market Fundamentals 105
Course on Leadership in Al Fakher 85
Sales and Distribution Training (Germany) 5
Recruitment Skills for Human Resources Specialists 7
Working in Teams 37
Supporting Teams Certeficates 33
Fursan Al Fakher Development Program 21
Total 293

— Al-Egbal Investment Co. did not arrange any training courses for its employees.

— Spectrum International for Renewable Energy Co. did not arrange any training courses for its
employees.

= Nature of work and fields of activity of the subsidiary companies
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Paid-up capital Shareholding
(JOD) percentage

Name of Company Company Type Main Activity

Al Fakher for Tobacco Manufacturing and sale of mo-

Limited Liabili | . i . 000, 1009

Trading and Agencies * imited Liability  lasses and its supp ies to various 6,000,000 00%
countries

Spectrum International for Limited Liability Investment in alternative 7,000,000 100%

Renewable Energy ** energy

The company has a subsidiary in Cayman Island under of the name of Al-Fakher holding company
Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and Agencies LLC

e Legal Form: Limited Liability Company.

e Main Activities: The manufacturing and distribution of flavored molasses and related
accessories.

e Paid-up Capital: JOD 6,000,000

e Ownership: 100%

e Company HQ: Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan, Amman / Um Uthaina - Sa’ad Ibn
Abi Waqgas Street - Building No. (39).

e Number of employees: (703)

e Registration: The company is registered with the Ministry of Industry and Trade under the
number (12208) as of 30/05/2006, with the national identification number (200010064).

¥* Spectrum International Renewable Energy Company

A limited liability company with a capital of 7 million dollars.

Works in the following fields:

e Buying, selling and investing in real estates.

e Setting up residential projects.

e Importing, selling and installing renewable energy components and systems

e Ownership: 100%

e Company HQ: Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan, Amman / Um Uthaina - Sa’ad Ibn
Abi Waqqgas Street - Building No. (39).

e Number of employees: (10)

o Started its activities in the late of 2012 and its total value assets is around (7.66) million JD.

e It has asubsidiary called Spectrum Jordan for Investment in Energy Projects, owned fully by
Spectrum International Renewable Energy Company and its capital amount is 10000 JD.
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Bios of the Members of the Board of Directors

1) The current board of directors

Mr. Tamir Saeed

Position: Chairman of the Board of Directors representing United Brands Of 4 A

Shisha Bidoc Limited Co Securities as of 21/12/2020.

Date of Birth: 20/10/1984

Nationality: British

Qualifications:

e Master of Economics from Cambridge University, the United Kingdom,
2006.

e Chartered Financial Analyst

Current Memberships and Positions:

e Managing Partner — Kingsway Capital Advisors LLP, as of 2014.

Previous Memberships and Positions:

e Member of the Board of Directors Al-Egbal Investment Co2017-2020

e Vice-President- Goldman Sachs International, during the period (2006-2014)

Mr. Stuart Brazier

e Current Position : Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors representing
United Brands Of Shisha Bidoc Limited Co Securities as of 24/01/2021

o Date of Birth:01/04/1971

e Nationality :United Kingdom

e Qualifications : BA (Hons) Economics with Accountancy .

e Associate Chartered Management Accountant (ACMA) - 2003 .

e Current memberships and positions

e 2019-Present-CFO of Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and Agencies

Memberships and previous positions

e 2014-2018 - Head of Finance -Europe & North Africa Division -British \ )
American Tobacco

e 1996-2014 - Various Finance & General Management Roles with British American Tobacco in
UK, Europe ,Asia ,Africa

Mr.Bassem Lotfy

Position: Members of the Board of Directors representing United Brands Of

Shisha Bidoc Limited Co Securities as of 24/01/2021.

Date of Birth: 25 June 1969

Nationality: Swiss

Qualifications:

e Masters of Business Administration

e Bachelors degree in Economics
Previous Memberships and Positions:

e Finance Director British American Tobacco Germany, Austria and
Switzerland (October 2015 to February 2020)

e Finance Director British American Tobacco Middle East (September 2010 to September 2015)

e Various other Director roles with British American Tobacco in Western Europe and Russia
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2) Former Board of Directors

Mr. Manuel Stotz_

Position: Chairman of the Board of Directors representing Kingsway Capital
Resigned on 29/11/2020.

Date of Birth: 13/07/1984.

Nationality: German

Qualifications:

e 2008: Bachelor of Economics from the London School of Economics (LSE)
Current Memberships and Positions

e 2017 - Present: Member of the Board of Directors.

e 2015 - Present: Kingsway Capital Ltd./Chief Executive Officer/Managing Partner.
Memberships and previous positions

e 2011-2015:THS Partners LLP - Portfolio Manager and Partner,

e 2008-2011: Goldman Sachs Investment Partners / Investment Analyst.

Mr. Yazid Adnan Mustafa Mufti

Position: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors representing Al-Sabil for 4

Financial Investments Resigned on 29/11/2020.

Date of Birth: 27/03/1953.

Nationality: Jordanian

Qualifications:

e 1976:Bachelor’s in Business Administration, The American University of
Beirut

Current memberships and positions

e 2015 - present: Member of the Board of Directors representing Al-Sabeel
Financial Investment Co, at Al-Egbal Investment Co.

e 2012 - present: Chairman of the Board of Directors / Cairo Amman Bank.

e 2005 - present: Main Shareholder in Al Hikma Company for Financial Services (Financial
Agent).

e 2005 - present: Member of the Board of Directors of Middle East Insurance Company.

e 2005 - present: Member of the Board of Directors of Zara Investment Holding Company.

e 2005 - present: Member of the Board of Directors of Palestine Development and Investment
LTD (PADICO Holding)

Memberships and previous positions

e 1997-1989: Various positions the last of which was Deputy Chairman of City Bank.

e 1989-2004: General Manager of Cairo Amman Bank.

-
Mr. Nael Kassar

Position: Member of the Board of Directors representing KCK Ltd Resigned on
29/11/2020.

Date of Birth: 08/05/1979

Nationality: French

Qualifications:

e 2011: History of Financial Markets.
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e 2002: Master’s in mathematics.

e 2001:BSCin Mathematics.

Current memberships and positions

e 2012 - Present: Effective shareholder / KCK LLC.
Memberships and previous positions

e 2007-2012: Business Development Manager / H.S.C (FZCO).
e 2002-2006: Business Development Manager / H.S.C SAL.

Mr. Desmond John Naughton
Position: Member of the Board of Directors representing Kingsway Fund - Frontier /~ ™~
Consumer Franchises, in second class membership Resigned on 29/11/2020
Date of Birth: 08/08/1966
Nationality: British
Qualifications:
e 2008: Advanced Development Program from Kellogg Business School.
e 1997: Master’s in Business Administration with distinction from Aston College
of Business Administration - J
e 1987: Double Major Bachelor of Geography and Planning, Birmingham
University
Current Memberships and Positions:
e Member of the Board of Directors representing Kingsway Fund — Frontier Consumer
Franchises, in second class membership as of 06/01/2019
e May 2017 - Present: CEO of Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and Agencies.
e May 2017 - Present: General Manager of Al-Egbal Investment Co.
Memberships and previous positions
British American Tobacco Company Limited
e 2013-2015: Director, Next Generation Products/ MD Nicoventures, Management Board.
e 2011-2012: Group Operations Director, Management Board.
e 2010-2011: Director, Eastern Europe, Management Board.
e 2009-2010: Global Brand Director (Dunhill, 555, B&H).
e 2005-2008: President, BAT Korea.
e 2002-2004: Managing Director, GCC (Saudi & Gulf) Business Unit.
e 2001-2001: Marketing Director, Northern Europe Area (Amsterdam)
e 1995-2001: General Manager, Czech Republic - Country Manager Saudi Arabia, UAE.
Coca-Cola and Schweppes Soft Drinks (United Kingdom)
e 1993-1995: Business Sector Controller
e 1992-1993: Service Development Manager.
e 1987-1991: Graduate Trainee and Commercial Customer Management. (" R

Mr. Ahmed Adel Badreldin

Position: Member of the Board of Directors representing Kingsway FCF Overflow
SPC- Segregated Portfolio One, Resigned on 29/11/2020

Date of Birth: 10/02/1972

Nationality: British

Qualifications:
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1996: Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering, the American University — Arab Republic of Egypt.

Current Memberships and Positions:

2018 - Present: Consultant — Abraaj Investment Management Limited Company.

Previous Memberships and Positions:

Mr. Saleh Rajab Hammad ("
Position: Member of the Board of Directors representing Bank of Jordan
Resigned on 29/11/2020.

Date of birth: 27/7/1962

Nationality: Jordanian

Qualifications:

Current membership and positions

1996 - 2000: Engineer- Baker Hughes Company.

2001- 2008: Manager - Barclays Capital Company.

2008 - 2018: Private property partner at special ownership -Head of Middle East and North
Africa Department- Abraaj Group.

1985: B.Sc. in Computer Science from University of Jordan.

2018- Present: General Manager, Bank of Jordan -
2017 - Present: Member of the Board of Directors representing the Bank of Jordan in Al-Igbal
Investment Company

2015 - Present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Jordan Leasing Company

2016 - Present: Vice Chairman of the company of the superiority of financial investments
2016 - Present: Member of the Board of Directors of the Bank of Jordan - Syria

2016 - Present: Member of the Board of Directors of the Association of Banks in Jordan

2017 - Present: Member of the Board of Directors of the Jordanian Company for Payment
Systems and Privatization Private Limited

Long-standing experience in auditing and operations.

Attended several courses on risk management and the Basel requirements organized in
Jordan and abroad.

Holds several professional certificates including CCO,

Memberships and previous positions

Mr. Nabil Ismail Al-Rantisi

Position: Member of the Board of Directors representing Al Yamamah
Public Investment Company Resigned on 29/11/2020.

Date of Birth: 10/03/1977

Nationality: Palestinian

Qualifications:

2015 - 2017: Assistant General Manager / Compliance and Risk Manager at Bank of Jordan
2015 - 2017: Secretary of the Board of Directors

2015 - 2015: Assistant Director General / Compliance and Risk Sector Management Bank of
Jordan

2009 - 2014: Executive Director / compliance and risk department Bank of Jordan

1994 - 2008: Director of Compliance and Operational Risk Department, Bank of Jordan

2017-2018 Acting General Manager of Bank of Jordan, e

€ico




Twenty-ninth Annual Report 2020

e 2000: Master's degree in Business Administration.

e 1998: Bachelor’s degree in Finance and Banking Sciences.

Current Memberships and Positions:

e 2018 - Present: Designated Member- Daman Investments.

e 2018 - Present: Member of the Board of Directors representing Al Yamamah Public
Investment Company at Al-Egbal Investment Co.

Previous Memberships and Positions:

e 2008 -2011: Brokerage Regional Manager/ Rasmala Investment Bank.

e 2012-2018: Designated Member / Menacorp Financial Services.

Mr. Khaleel Ibrahim Mamoori - ~
Position: Member of the Board of Directors representing Pasteur
Management Investments.

Date of birth: 16/02/1967

Nationality: Jordanian

Qualifications:

e 1990: College of Administration and Economics.

Current memberships and positions

2017 - Present: Executive Chairman of Al Mamoori Holding Group Ltd.
Memberships and previous positions

e 2003-2017: CEO of Al Fakher Al Thahabi.

e 1997-2003: CEO of Al Arabia for cigarettes and tobacco.

e 1990-2006: CEO of Al Mamoori Cargo.

e 1990-1997: CEO of Al Mamoori for cigarettes and tobacco.

eico 1




Twenty-ninth Annual Report 2020

Bios Executive leadership members as of 31/12/2020

-

Mr . Stuart Brazier

Current Position: General Manager of the company

Its details are listed in the list of board members.

Note: This position was held by Mr. Desmond John Naughton until 24/01/2021.
-

Mr. Hussein Abdel Jalil Abed AL- Fawair Ve

Position: Director of Public Relations.

Date of birth: 07/09/1959

Nationality: Jordanian

Qualifications:

e 1996: MA in International Marketing.

e 1994: Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.

Current memberships and positions

2016 - Present: Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Igbal Company for

Iron and Metal Trading. \

Memberships and previous positions

e 2014 -2017: Secretary of the Board of Directors of Al-Egbal Investment Company.

e 2014 -2016: Member of the Board of Directors of the Trust Company for International
Transport - representing the Jordanian Igbal Company for General Trading.

e 2001 -2010: Assistant Director of Public Relations / International Tobacco and Cigarette
Company

e 1998 -2000: Manager of Lubna Group

e 1996 - 1996: Regional Director / Islamic Corporation for Food Products — Palestine.

e 1996 - 1998: General Manager / Islamic Corporation for Food Products — Palestine.

e 1989 -1996: Economic Researcher / Export Development Corporation

e 1980 - 1989: Private business.

Memberships and previous positions

e 2014 -2016: Hikma Pharmaceuticals - Algeria / Finance Director.

e 2001 -2013: Merck Sharp & Dum / Director of Finance

e 1998 -2000: Iridium Middle East Dubai United Arab Emirates / Financial Analyst.

e 1994 - 1998: Deloitte & Touche International- Dubai United Arab Emirates (UAE) / Senior
Auditor.
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Mr. Saif Mousa Mustafa Saleh

Position: Chief Strategy Officer of Al - Egbal Investment Company. Resigned

on31/03/2021.

Date of birth: 30/05/1977

Nationality: Jordanian

Qualifications:

e 2002: MBA - California State University Fullerton.

e 2000: BSc Mechanical Engineering — Jordan University of Science &
Technology.

Current membership and positions

e 2019 -Present: Chief Officer — Sales & International Markets- Alfakher

e 2016 - Present: Board Member of Istishari Hospital Group.

e 2012 - Present: Vice Chairman of Spectrum International for Renewables.

Memberships and previous positions

e 2012 -2014: General Manager of Spectrum International for Renewables.

e 2009 -2012:Vice President - Strategy & Business Development of Al - Egbal Investment

Company.

e 2005 - 2009: Senior strategy manager at Ingram Micro North America, California- USA.
e 2002 -2005: Senior financial consultant at Experian North America, California- USA.
e 2015-2017:Vice President - strategy and business development at Al-Fakher

Adv. Anwar Osama Samih Sukkari

Current Position: Secretary of the Board of Directors
Date of Birth: 04/09/1984

Qualifications:

Twenty-ninth Annual Report 2020

-

~

-

Current Memberships and Positions:

Previous Memberships and Positions:

Bachelor of Law/ 2006
Master of Law/2007

Advocate/ Osama Sukkari & Associates since 2009.
Secretary of the Board of Directors at Al-Egbal Investment Co., as of
24/10/2017

Obeidat and Freihat (Lawyers) during the period (2007-2009(
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The extent of dependency on specific vendors or main agents (local and
international) year 2020

Agents & Vendors

31/12/2019 31/12/2020

Name of Shareholder Number of Number of SR Number of Number of SR
Shares Shareholders 9 Shares Shareholders 9

United Brands Of Shisha

Bidoc Limited Co 29952781 99.921%
Ki -Frontier C -

e:r;:?:\r/]v:ris;:n Ier-onsum= 45 092,378 25.154% 5000 0.008%
Al-Egbal Investment Co. 10706513 17.488% 0 0.000%
g:)”rffso"l‘;zy FCF - Segregated 9,837,784 16.396% 5000 0.008%
Mamoori Holdings Group 3,825,925 6.377% 0 0.000%
Limited Company

Bank of Jordan 3,207,198 5.345% 5000 0.008%
Total 42,724,148 5 71.207% 59952781 4 99.946%
Remaining Shareholders 17,275,852 1,666 28.793% 32219 22 0.054%
Grand Total 60,000,000 1,762 100% 60,000,000 26 100%

Al Fakher Achievements in 2020

1. During the year, management focused on protecting liquidity and security of our assets:

- Employee safety was at front of mind. As a result new ‘working from home policies were introduced

- Manufacturing was secured by dividing the production staff into different teams and ensuring
segregation.

- The supply chain remained flexible to the ever-changing environment and thus ensured the supply
of raw materials to the factories and the supply of finished goods to the markets.

- Customer credit was tightly managed and suppliers credit terms were reviewed.

= An Investment Committee was established with the clear aim of managing cashflows through
screening OPEX and CAPEX

2. The new company headquarters were opened in Dubai in Mid July. The offices have a capacity for
120 employees.

3. New packaging and branding was rolled out to all key markets.

4. 'Sparcs’and ‘Bases, both innovations to facilitate shisha mixology were launched during the year.

5. Sales from our on-line business in the USA grew by over 50% as consumers switched to e-comm
purchases. In other markets where home consumption increased, as a result of Covid restrictions,
we were able to gain listings in key accounts that were able to facilitate home delivery services.

6. The company engaged with and educated the shisha community to create awareness of hygienic
and safe shisha usage during the pandemic.
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7. We further optimized our product portfolio and focused our efforts on winning SKUs. This resulted
in some markets reducing their SKUs by 50%. This in turn led to enhanced demand fulfilment,
reduced machine changeovers and reduced overheads.

8. Investment was increased behind the further development of our novel product platform.

9. Continued to recruit and build stronger teams in our key end markets and further solidify our
distribution footprint in key markets.

10. We increased our portfolio of on line learning materials and increased access to over 200
employees. In addition, a 12 week market management programme was run covering all aspects of
the business from trade marketing to finance.

The following are the most important plans to be completed in 2021:

1. In 2021 our focus will be to further strengthen our position in the major markets by adapting our
response to the pandemic. We will also recruit new talent to better open up new geographies where
we see that the category is growing.

2. We aim to continue to formalise the shisha community and promote and encourage the growth of

industry bodies. These alliances will then be well placed to engage relevant regulators to ensure

that, where there is change, sensible and sustainable legislation is introduced.

Digital & e-commerce will play a very pivotal role in the company’s future success. Educating and

exciting people to try our product offerings and to become part of the shisha community is the way

to grow our brands. Digital amplification is the solution to this challenge. We will leverage digital

in a big way to become the clear leader in spreading and experiencing the joy of shisha across the

world.

4. We plan to continue with the successful rationalization plans of our SKUs that have started in 2020,

as well as running a corporate-wide plan to review our operational excellence programs.
We plan on continuing our Leadership Training Curriculum for the extended Management
Leadership team along with a range of targeted training and support interventions for:

- Wellbeing (stress management, cultivating a positive mindset, ways to keep fit and healthy, etc.)

- Recruitment Skills

- Negotiation Skills

- Communication skills

- Intercultural Intelligence

- Ethics, Etiquette and Compliance Training

6. We will continue to invest in the development of our next generation e-shisha device and will plan
to launch in a key market towards the ned of the year.

7. 2021 will see the start of the implementation of our new ERP system. Our new Microsoft Dynamics
suite will drive efficiency of processing and will facilitate the fast retrieval of key information from
our growing data lake.

w

hd

Government protection or privileges to the company or any of its products and any

patents or franchises

Al-Egbal Investment Company enjoys privileges under applicable laws and regulations in Jordan,

Where the company enjoys the following:

« Protection under the Intellectual Property and Trademark Law in the Kingdom - knowing that the
company owns the following trademarks follows:
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Al-Egbal Investments Company : 2 Trademarks

Al-Fakher Company for Tobacco Trading and Agencies (1 Trademarks)

AF Development Holding Limited : 168 Trademarks

Pioneer Venture Group : 11 Trademarks

Al Fakher International : 457 Trademarks

Al Fakher Holding for Tobacco Trading & agencies : 34 Trademarks

« Renewable alternative energy systems have been exempted from customs duties and sales taxes in
accordance with the decisions of the Ministry of Finance and the General Customs Department.

« There are no patents or franchises.

oA wWwN =

The company is committed to adopting international quality standards and insures the application of
necessary health warnings on its products in addition to conformity of the products to the standards
and specifications adopted locally and internationally.

On this note, it's important to note that the GCC'’s standards organization “GSO” has recently adopted a
new standard for flavored molasses and that our products are compliant with the new standards.

The financial effect of operations of a non-recurring nature that occurred during the fiscal year and are
not included in the Company’s main activity:

It is worth mentioning that in 2018 the company incurred some expenses that are non- recurring in
nature. Below is a list of the

major non-recurring elements.
The extent of dependency on specific vendors or main agents (local and international) year 2019

Agents& Vendors

KM Tobacco General Trading FZ-LLC UAE-FREE ZONE 26%

National Trading and Developing Enterprises L.L.C UAE 15%

Sierra Network , INC USA 14%

Idealism General Trading FZ-LLC UAE-FREE ZONE 13%

QEMMAT AL FAKHER Est, Trading KSA 8%
Vendors

Vendors ( Raw Material Purchase) - UAE consolidated

Alliance One Rotag AG Germany 12%
HERTZ FLAVORS GMBH & CO. KG Germany 10%
Emirates Printing Press LLC UAE 9.5%
Majan Printing UAE 9%

Mella SRL Societa Unipersonale Italy 8.5%
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Organizational Structures:

Organizational Structure/Al-Egbal Investment Co.

Board of Directors

Chief Executive Officer

Al Fakher for Tobacco
or Renewable Energy - Trading and Agencies
Jordan LLC- Jordan

Information
Public Relations Technology and Investors Relations

Finance Department

Department Human Resources Department

Department
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Organizational Structure: Al Fakher Company

General Director

Al Fakher Hoding
for Tobacoo Trading
and Agencing

Finance
Department

Organizational Structure: Spectrum International for Renewable Energy

Board of Directors

Executive Director

Spectrum Jordan for
Investment in Energy
Projects

Information Business Development
Technology and and Projects
Human Resources Management

Department Department

Finance Department =R

Department
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Risks that the company is subject to:

The company is exposed to a range of risks due to the nature of its business. These risks can be

summarized as follows:

o Market risk, currency exchange rate fluctuations, interest and credit rates.

e The economic conditions experienced by the region in general.

e Change and/or amendments to government laws and regulations and the negative impact they
may have on the plans and objectives of the company.

e The production of low-quality goods, by unrecognized entities, bearing the brand of the company,
negatively affecting the company’s reputation and reducing the demand for its products.

The Company’s operational activities and business results for 2020:

« The company’s net profit for the year 2020 compared to the same period of 2019 decreased from
44 million dinars to (14) million dinars, a decrease.

« The company’s net sales for the year 2020 compared to the same period of 2019 decreased from
706 thousand dinars to 326 thousand dinars with a decrease of 54%

« The company’s operating profit for 2020 compared to the same period of 2019 decreased from (21)
million dinars to (58) million dinars.

« Decrease the Shareholders’ equity from JD 188 million in 2019 to JD 173 million in 2020.

« The working capital of the company reached JD 262 million at the end of 2020 compared to JD 22
million in 2019. This increase amounted to JD 240 million came through:

1. JD 176m related to net assets held for Sale

2. Anincrease of JD 29 million in receivables and due from related parties;
3. decrease in other credit balances and due to acquisition by JD37 million.
4. decrease in accounts payable by JD 14 million.

« Theincrease in administrative and public expenses for the current year 2019 worth 10.4 million
dinars compared to 2018.

« This increase is mainly driven by the acquisition and establishing of new entities and building
capacity in most functions to drive expansion plans in the years to come, in addition to increasing
the salaries resulting from increasing the number of employees after expansion and acquisition and
the yearly increase, in addition to the one off expenses.

Considering the above, the financial results show that the Group achieved positive results in the
following years thanks to the wise policy pursued by the company’s management and the efforts and
activities of its employees.

Financial position analysis
First, we present you a brief about the mother company (Al-Egbal Investment Company) and its
subsidiaries as basis for analyzing the company’s results:

Al-Egbal Investment Company

It is a public joint stock company established on 1/6/1992. It operates according to the objectives of
the company represented by the commercial and industrial agencies, investing and engaging the
company’s funds as it deems appropriate by establishing branches or owning existing companies or
various financial investments. The company’s value assets are about JD 104 million.

eico




Twenty-ninth Annual Report 2020

Al-Fakher Company for Tobacco Trading and Agencies.

A limited liability company with a capital of 6 million dinars. The percentage of ownership of the

company is 100% and it works in the field of manufacturing, trading and distribution of molasses.

The company has a subsidiary in the Cayman Islands under the name of Al-Fakher Holding Company for

tobacco trade and agencies with a capital of 50 thousand dollars and 100%

Al-Fakher Holding Company for Tobacco Trading and Agencies has subsidiaries as follows:

*  Al-Fakher International Company in the Cayman Islands with a capital of $ 10,000 and 100%
ownership.

*  AF Development Holding Limited — UAE and owns 100%

*  Al-Fakher Tobacco Company in the Emirate of Ajman - United Arab Emirates with a capital of 50
thousand dollars and owns 100%. It has subsidiaries as follows:

- Al-Fakher Tobacco factory with a capital of 40 million dirhams (7.72 million dinars) and
is engaged in the manufacturing, production and trade of molasses. These products are
distributed locally (United Arab Emirates), regionally and in many countries around the world

*  Al-Fakher Tobacco Company in Turkey with a capital of approximately $ 27 thousand and a 100%
ownership by Al-Fakher Holding for Tobacco Trading and Agencies.

*  Pioneer Venture Group with a capital of around 50 thousand dollars and a 100% ownership noting
that this company was a subsidiary of Al-Egbal Investment Company whereas its ownership is was
transferred to Al-Fakher holding - Cayman Island in 2017 and owns the following subsidiaries:

- Al-Fakher Holding Company - America, founded in 2017 with a 100% ownership stake and owns
100% of Sierra in 2017 and 100% of Romman incorporated in 2019.

- Al-Fakher Distribution Company - Germany was established in 2017 and owns 100%

- Al-Fakher Distribution Company - Saudi Arabia and owns 100%

- Al-Fakher Distribution Company - Egypt and owns 100%

- Al-Fakher Factory - Egypt and owns100%

- Al-Fakher Global Brands — UK and owns 100%

- Al-Fakher Factory — Poland and owns 100%

- AF Unity Labs GmbH - Germany and owns 100%

Spectrum International Renewable Energy Company

A limited liability company with a capital of 7 million dinars, 100% ownership. It works in the field

of buying, selling and investing in real estate, setting up residential projects, importing, selling and
installing renewable energy components and systems, and started its activities related to renewable
energy in late 2012. Its total value assets is around 8.7 million JD

International Tobacco and Cigarette Company (Liquidated).

Limited Liability Company with a capital of JD 6 million 100% ownership. After the sale of the
Company»s assets, machinery and land to Philip Morris International Company and to the end of the
purpose for which the Company was established, the Extraordinary General Assembly of the Company
decided on October 7, 2012 to willingly liquidate the company which is liquidated in 2019.

The Company’s operational activities and business results for 2019:

« The company»s net profit for the year 2019 compared to the same period of 2018 decreased from 52
million dinars to 45 million dinars, a decrease of 13%

« The company»s net sales for the year 2019 compared to the same period of 2018 increased from 189
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million dinars to 224 million dinars with an increase of 19%

« The company»s operating profit for 2019 compared to the same period of 2018 decreased from 70
million dinars to 65 million dinars, a decrease of around 7%.

+ Increase the Shareholders> equity from JD 145 million in 2018 to JD 192 million in 2019.

« The working capital of the company reached JD 85 million at the end of 2019 compared to JD
97 million in 2018. This decrease amounted to JD 12 million came through: 1. An increase of JD
18.7 million in receivables; 2. Increase in other receivables and credit balances by JD2.8 million. 3.
Increase in accounts payable by JD 3.7 million.

« Theincrease in administrative and public expenses for the current year 2019 worth 10.4 million
dinars compared to 2018.

« This increase is mainly driven by the acquisition and establishing of new entities and building
capacity in most functions to drive expansion plans in the years to come, in addition to increasing
the salaries resulting from increasing the number of employees after expansion and acquisition and
the yearly increase, in addition to the one off expenses.

Considering the above, the financial results show that the Group achieved positive results in the
following years thanks to the wise policy pursued by the company’s management and the efforts and

activities of its employees.

Analysis of Financial Ratios

Return on investment 108% (3%)
Return on Equity 24% (33%)

Details of profits, net shareholders’ equity, share price and the distributed profits

Statement/

Year
Assets 97,701,774 99,620,066 108,234,546 126,982,710 258,636,670 415,009,416 430,918,957 606,501,886

E:Egtix 30,012,005 28312913 33,531,000 41,839,023 52,437,458 57,896,798 49,950,415 (17,783,229)

Distrib-
uted Profits/ 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 - - - -
Shares

Earnings Per

0.467 0.441 0.521 0.623 0.779 0.864 0.7 (0.25)
Share
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Share price
at the end
of the year
(Dinar)

5.83 4.84 7.25 1248 16 13 12.30 14
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Pre-Tax Prof-

its / Losses (17,783,229) 49,950,415 57,896,798 52,437,458 41,839,023 33,531,000 28,312,913 30,012,905 22,463,850
i

Annual

After-Tax

Profits / (58,186,789) 44,011,339 51,698,944 46,744,335 37,398,458 31,280,583 26,462,297 28,039,900 21,004,698
Losses

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Equity 172,520,016 187,695,014 145,169,332 93,348,847 86,634,986 74,223,601 67,568,459 66,096,666 57,465,334

Fixed Assets 981,948 29,504,005 29,351,887 21,965,209 18,543,871 19,501,016 20,848,849 17,393,784 17,750,141

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Market

Share Value

(Dinar) 14 12.3 13 16 12.48 7.25 4.84 5.83 3.15
Book Value

Per Share 2.87 3.13 237 3.11 2.89 297 2.7 2.64 2.87
(Dinar)

60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000

2.87 3.13 237 1.56 144 1.24 1.13 1.10 0.96
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Benefits and rewards to which the Chairman and members of the Board of Directors
were entitled during the year 2020

Annual Total

Annual | Mobility | Annual annual

salaries | allow- | rewards privi-

ance leges

Manuel Stotz Chairman of the Board of Directors 0 1200 0 0 12000
Yazeed Adnan Al-Mufti Vice-Chairman of the board of Directors 0 0 2000 14000
Nael Kassar Member of the Board of Directors 0 1200 0 0 12000
Desmond Naughton Member of the Board of Directors 0 1200 0 0 12000
Ahmed Adel Badreldin Member of the Board of Directors 0 1200 0 0 12000
Tamir Saeed Member of the Board of Directors 0 1200 0 2000 14000
Saleh Rajab Alyan Member of the Board of Directors 0 1200 0 0 12000
Khalil Ibrahim Imran Mamoori Member of the Board of Directors 0 1200 0 0 12000
Nabil Ismail Al-Rantisi Member of the Board of Directors 0 1200 0 2000 14000
Total 0 10800 0 6000 114000

Benefits and rewards of Senior Management during 2018:

Annual Trans- End of

Total A I Total A I
Position ota r.mua port Allow- Travel Ex- Rewards Service otal Annua
Salaries Benefits
ances penses Benefit
D h
esmondJohn 2l Manager 12,000,000 12,000.000
Naughton
Hussein Al-Fawair  "UPlicRelations o 1 5o Carfor work 113, 500.000
Manager affairs
Secretary of Board

Anwar Sukkari 3,600.000 3,600.000

of Directors

The management of the mother company (Al-Egbal) and all its employees receive wages in return for
services provided to Al Fakher Tobacco Trading Company in Ajman which are paid out directly from Al
Fakher Company in Ajman.

Contracts, projects and commitments entered by the Company or its subsidiaries
There were no contracts, projects or commitments entered by the company with any of its subsidiaries,
Chairman of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of Directors, General Manager, or any
employee working for the company or any relatives during the year 2019.
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System in the Company
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Social Responsibility

The social responsibility is considered one of the principles that all religions, regulations and laws have
agreed upon due to its great role in the rehabilitation of individuals and societies.

Accordingly, the social responsibility is a scientific fact and a social need; because all society members
and institutions are always in need for the socially responsible individual in all fields. So, the high sense

of commitment of community members toward social responsibility is the parameter we look up to
when we evaluate the development and growth of any community.
In line with these principles and theories, the company has continued to develop and evolve programs
that aimed to serve and develop society by providing material and in-kind support.

In this context, the value of the cash and in-kind donations provided by the company during the

year 2020 is (525,100.000 JOD), thus the total contributions of the company since its establishment is
approximately (6,293,047.000 JOD)

The following table shows the parties receiving donations:

1 Himmat Watan Fund 500,000.000
2 (Al Fakher, Ajman) 25,100.000
Total 525,100.000

Corporate Governance Report

A. The company is working on applying all the principles of the Governance and
commits to the disclosure procedures based on the requirements of the relevant
and applicable systems and laws.

B. Names of the Current and Resigned Members of the Board of Directors

Mr. Tamir Saeed

Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Part time/not independent

Appointed on 21/12/2020

Mr.Stuart Brazier

Vice Chairman of the Board
of Directors

Full Time / not independent

Appointed on21/12/2020

Mr.Bassem Lotfy

Member of the Board of
Directors

Full Time / not independent

Appointed on 24/01/2021

Mr. Desmond Naughton

Vice Chairman of the Board
of Directors

Full Time / not independent

Resigned on24/01/2021

Chairman of the Board of

Mr. Manuel Stotz . Part time/not independent Resigned on 29/11/2020
Directors
Mr. Yazid Adnan Al-Mufti Vice Chalrm:c]n of the Board Part time /independent Resigned on 29/11/2020
of Directors
Mr. Nael Kassar Member'of the Board of Part time/not independent Resigned on 29/11/2020
Directors
Mr. Desmond Naughton Membe;:;i;zl;srl:oard of Full Time / not independent Resigned on 29/11/2020
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Member of the Board of

Mr. Ahmed Adel Badreldin . Part time/not independent Resigned on 29/11/2020
Directors

Mr. Tamir Saeed Member _Of the Board of Part time /independent Resigned on 29/11/2020
Directors

Mr. Saleh Rajab Hammad Member _Of the Board of Part time/not independent Resigned on 29/11/2020
Directors

Mr. Nabil Al-Rantisi Member _Of the Board of Part time /independent Resigned on 29/11/2020
Directors

Mr. Khalil Ibrahim Mamoori Member of the Board of Part time /independent Resigned on 29/11/2020

Directors

C. Names of Representatives of the Legal Members of the Board of Directors

Board of Directors
United Brands of Shisha

Representatives

Mr. Tamir Saeed

Position

Chairman of the

Status

Part time/not independent

Notes

Appointed on

Bidco Limited Board of Directors 21/12/2020
United Brands of Shisha . Vice Chairman of the ) . Appointed on
Bidco Limited Mr.Stuart Brazier Board of Directors Full Time / not independent 21/12/2020
United Brands of Shisha Member of the Board . . Appointed on
Bidco Limited Mr.Bassem Lotfy of Directors Full Time / not independent 24/01/2021
United Brands of Shisha Mr. Desmond Vice Chairman of the Full Time / not independent Resigned
Bidco Limited Naughton Board of Directors P 0on24/01/2021
. . Chairman of the . . Resigned on
Kingsway Capital Fund Mr. Manuel Stotz Board of Directors Part time/not independent 29/11/2020
Al-Sabeel for Financial In- Mr. Yazid Adnan Vice Chairman of the Part time /independent Resigned on
vestments Co. Al-Mufti Board of Directors P 29/11/2020
Member of the Board , . Resigned on
KCK Company Mr. Nael Kassar of Directors Part time/not independent 29/11/2020
. . Mr. Desmond Member of the Board . . Resigned on
Kingsway Capital Fund Naughton of Directors Full Time / not independent 29/11/2020
. Mr. Ahmed Adel Member of the Board . . Resigned on
Kingsway FCF Badreldin of Directors Part time/not independent 29/11/2020
Al-Sultan for Investment in . Member of the Board . . Resigned on
Financial Securities Mr. Tamir Saeed of Directors Parttime /independent 29/11/2020
Mr. Saleh Rajab Member of the Board . . Resigned on
Bank of Jordan Co. Hammad of Directors Part time/not independent 29/11/2020
Al Yamamah Public Invest- . .. Member of the Board . . Resigned on
ment Company Mr. Nabil Al-Rantisi of Directors Part time /independent 29/11/2020
Basseterre for Administrative ~ Mr. Khalil Ibrahim ~ Member of the Board Part time /independent Resigned on
Consultancy Mamoori of Directors P 29/11/2020

D. Executive Positions and Names of Occupants
Executive Positions at the Company
Name

Position Notes

Mr.Stuart Brazier

General Manager

Mr.Stuart Brazier Finance Manager

Mr.Saif Mousa Saleh Chief Strategy officer

Mr.Hussein Faouri Public Relations Manager
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E. All Memberships that are occupied by the Members of the Board of Directors at
the public shareholding Companies:
® Chairman of the Board of Directors/ /Amman Cairo Bank as of 07/10/2012
® Member of the Board of Directors/ Middle East Insurance Co. as of 2005.
® Member of the Board of Directors/ Zara Investment Holding Co. as of 2005.

F. Name of Governance Officer:
® Adv. Anwar Osama Sukkari

G. The names of the committees emanating from the Council for 2019
1- The Nominations and Rewards Committee
2- The Audit Committee .
3- The Risk Management Committee
4- Social Responsibility Committee.
5- The Corporate Governance Committee

H. The Audit Committee

- Yazid Adnan Al-Mufti/ Member of the Auditing Committee
Quialifications: Bachelor of Business Administration (the American University of Beirut) 1976.
Current Memberships and Positions
- Main Shareholder in Al Hikma Company for Financial Services (Financial Agent) as of 2005
- Chairman of the Board of Directors / Cairo Amman Bank as of 07/10/2012
- Member of the Board of Directors in each of the following as of 2005:

- Middle East Insurance Company

- Zara Investment Holding Company

- Palestine Development and Investment Company (PADICO)
Previous Memberships and Positions
- Various positions the last of which was Vice Chairman / City Bank during the period (1977-1989)
- General Manager / Cairo Amman Bank during the period (1989-2004)

- Mr. Tamir Saeed

Position: Member of the Board of Directors representing Al-Sultan For Investment In Financial Securities
as of 06/01/2019

Nationality: British

Date of Birth: 20/10/1984

Quialifications: *Master of Economics from Cambridge University, the United Kingdom, 2006.

Current Memberships and Positions:

- Administrative Partner — Kingsway Fund, as of 2014.

Previous Memberships and Positions:

- Vice-President- Goldman Sax International Co., during the period (2006-2014)
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- Mr. Nabil Ismail Al-Rantisi/ Member of the Auditing Committee

Quialifications: 1999: Master of Business Administration, 1998: Bachelor of Banking & Financial Sciences
Current Memberships and Positions

- 2018 - Present: Executive Manager of Daman Investments

Previous Memberships and Positions

- 2012 -2018: Designated Member / Menacorp Financial Services

- 2008 - 2011: Director of Regional Financial Markets-Rasmala Investment Bank

I. Names of Heads and Members of the Remaining Committees Formed by the Board
of Directors:

1) The Nominations and Rewards Committee consists of:

- Tamir Saeed / Head.

- Yazid Al-Mufti/Member.

- Manuel Stotz/Member

2) The Governance Committee consists of:
- Yazid Adnan Al-Mufti /Head

- Manuel Stotz / Member

- Tamir Saeed /Member

3) The Risk Management Committee consists of:
- Tamir Saeed /Head

- Desmond John Naughton /Member

- Nabil Al-Rantisi/Member

4) The Social Responsibility Committee consists of:
- Desmond John Naughton / Head

- Saleh Rajab Hammad/Member

- Nabil Al-Rantisi/Member

J. Number of Committees’ Meetings and Description of Attending Members

Meetings of the Risk Management Committee During 2020

No. of Meetings: 0

Attendance Excused Absence

Serial No.

1 Tamir Saeed 0 0
2 Desmond John Naughton 0 0
3 Nabil Al-Rantisi 0 0
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Meetings of the Auditing Committee 2020

No. of Meetings: 5
Serial No. Name
5 0

Yazid Al-Mufti
2 Tamir Saeed 5 0
3 Nabil Al-Rantisi 0

Meetings of the Nominations & Rewards Committee During 2020

No. of Meetings: 0 Notes
Serial No. Name
0 0

Tamir Saeed
2 Manuel Stotz 0 0
3 Yazid Adnan Al-Mufti 0 0

Meetings of the Corporate Governance Committee During 2020

No. of Meetings: 0
Serial No. Name
0 0

Yazeed Al-Mufti

2 Manuel Stotz 0 0

3 Tamir Saeed 0 0

Meetings of the Social Responsibility Committee During 2020

No. of Meetings: 0
Serial No. Name
0 0

Desmond John Naughton

2 Saleh Rajeb Hammad 0 0

3 Nabil Al-Ranteesi 0 0

K. The number of Meetings of the Auditing Committee with the Independent Auditor
is (5) meetings

No. of Meetings: 5

Serial No. Name

1 Yazeed Al-Mufti 5 0
2 Tamir Saeed 5 0
3 Nabil Al-Rantisi 5 0
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Knowing that the committee was decided the following:

On 22/04/2020 it was decided to approve the company’s results as on 31/12/2019.

On 15/07/2020 it was decided to approve the company’s results as on 30/03/2020.

On 05/08/2020 it was decided to approve the company’s results as on 30/06/2020.

On 27/10/2020 it was decided to approve the company’s results as on 30/09/2020.

* Noting that the meetings were hold via the visual and audio contact means and that was in order
to comply with the defense orders that issued under the defense law.

Note: When the Board of Directors resigned on 29/11/2020; the committees of the Board of Directors
were resigned accordingly.
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Highlights of Company Activities in 2020

On 11/02/2020, the Board of Directors meeting no. 142 was held, by which the following was
achieved:
= Discussion and approval of the estimated budget for the year 2020.
= InJanuary, an extended meeting was held between the executive management and all depart-
ments through which the agenda for the company’s activities was discussed.

= 0On05/03/2020, the Board of Directors meeting no. 143 was held, and in view of which approval was
granted for the acquisition offer by United Brands of Shisha Bidco Limited to acquire all shares of
the Company for the price of JOD 16 per one share.

= 0On 05/03/2020, the Audit Review Committee held its meeting no. (28) and decided to approve the
draft for the Company’s results as on 31/12/2019.

= On 27/04/2020, the Board of Directors meeting no. 144 was held, and the following was performed:
= Approval of donation to Himmat Watan Fund in the amount of half a million Jordanian Dinars.

On 07/05/2020, the Board of Directors meeting no. 145 was held, and the following was performed:
= Discussion of a new offer by United Brands of Shisha Bidco Limited for acquisition of all shares of
the company.

On 13/05/2020, the Board of Directors meeting no. 146 was held, through which the following was
achieved:
= Discussion of a new offer by United Brands of Shisha Bidco Limited for acquisition of all shares of
the company proposing a decrease of share price from 16- 12 JOD per share.

On 28/05/2020, the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting no. 30 for Al-Eqbal Investment Co. was

held, and the following important decisions were made:

1. Approval of the minutes of the last ordinary General Assembly Meeting held on 25/04/2019.

2. Approval of the Board of Directors report for the Company’s activities in the financial year ended
on 31/12/2019.

3. Approval of the Company’s Auditor’s Report for the financial statements for the financial year
ended on 31/12/2019.

4. Approval of the Company’s financial statements for the financial year ended on 31/12/2018 as
provided by the Auditor.

5. Granting discharge from liability to the Chairman and members of the Board of Directors within
the provisions of law for the financial year ended on 31/2/2019.

= Election of Messrs Kawasmy and Partners as the Company’s auditors for the year 2020.

= On 28/05/2020, the extraordinary General Assembly Meeting no. 15 of Al-Eqbal Investment Co. was
held, resulting in the following major decisions:
= Approval that United Brands of Shisha Bidco Limited acquires all shares of the company for the
price of (14) Jordanian Dinars per share, in view of Article 222(b) of Companies Law.
= Authorizing the Board of Directors to take all actions they find necessary or fit, or may be re-
quired by law to execute the General Assembly decisions regarding the aforementioned offer,
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and transfer the title of all shares in the Company’s capital to the interest of United Brands of
Shisha Bidco Limited

On 09/06/2020, the Board of Directors meeting no. 147 was held, and the following was performed:

On

On

Discussion of the tax claim issued against Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading& Agencies Co.
Appointing advocate Osama Sukkari Office as attorney for the company to plead before courts.

15/07/2020, the Board of Directors meeting no. 148 was held, and the following was performed:
Approval of Company results as on 30/03/2020.

15/07/2020, the Audit Review Committee held its meeting no. 30, through which it decided to

approve Company results as on 30/03/2020.

On

On

On

On

On

On

On

28/07/2020, the Board of Directors meeting no. 149 was held, and the following was performed:
Allowing United Brands of Shisha Bidco Limited further time period ending on 30/09/2020 to
fulfill the procedures of acquiring all shares of the Company.

05/08/2020, the Board of Directors meeting no. 150 was held, with the following decisions:
Approval of Company results as on 30/06/2020.

05/08/2020, the Audit Review Committee held its meeting no. 31 through which it decided to:
Approve Company results as on 30/06/2020.

21/10/2020, the Board of Directors meeting no. 151 was held, and the following was performed:
Approval of executing the acquisition deal at Messrs Jordan Securities Commission and the
Securities Depository Center.

27/10/2020, the Board of Directors meeting no. 152 was held, making the following decisions:
Approval on making a settlement with the Sales Tax Department.
Approval of Company results as on 30/09/2020.

27/10/2020, the Audit Review Committee held its meeting no. 32 through which it decided:
Approval of Company results as on 30/09/2020.

21/12/2020, the Board of Directors meeting no. 153 was held, making the following decisions:
Election of a new Board of Directors for 4 years consisting of Messrs:
United Brands of Shisha Bidco Limited, as Chairman of the Board of Directors, represented by
Mr. Tamir Saeed.
United Brands of Shisha Bidco Limited, as Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, represent-
ed by Mr. Desmond Naughton.
United Brands of Shisha Bidco Limited, as member of the Board of Directors, represented by
Mr. Stuart Brazier.
Appointment of advocate Anwar Sukkari as Secretary of the Board of Directors.
Determining the authorized signatories for the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the General Assembly

Al-Egbal Investment Company

(Public Shareholding Company)

Amman - Jordan

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Al-Egbal Investment Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the related consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information..

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present Fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Consolidated financial statements in Jordan and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of Management and

Those Charged with Governance for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management considers is
necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Director is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Consolidated Financial State-
ments

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our audit
report that includes our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of audit process in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our audit
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, we will modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audit report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements

The Group maintains proper accounting records. Which are, in accordance in all material respects with
the accompanying consolidated financial statements. We recommend the general assembly to approve
the consolidated financial statements, after taking into consideration the emphasis of matter paragraph
mentioned above.

Kawasmy & Partners
KPMG

Hatem Kawasmy Amman - Jordan
License No, (656) March 1, 2023
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of December 31, As of January, 1
2019 2019

Jordanian Dinar Note 2020 (Restated)* (Restated)*
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Intangible assets 5 - 217,725,770 184,907,708
Property, plant, and equipment 6 981,948 29,504,005 29,351,887
Right of use assets 7 60,356 12,651,288 -
Investment property 8 - 271,028 674,552
Financial assets at fair value through OCI 9 150,525 150,525 150,525
Deferred Tax Asset 23 - 1,314,069 129,946
Advance payments for Investments 27 - - 863,871
Other debit balances 13 2,112,697 1,324,638 -
Intercompany Loan (Receivable) 29-2 21,414,623 - -
Total Non-Current Assets 24,720,149 262,941,323 216,078,489
Current Assets
Inventory 10 1,491,615 36,660,300 37,725,583
Assets held for sale 11 435,988,794 - -
Trade and other receivables 12 708,229 25,470,280 21,871,531
Due From Related Parties 29 139,056,867 36,089,900 58,148,244
Other debit balances 13 4,159,118 28,321,809 25,115,674
Cash on hand and at banks 14 377,114 41,435,345 57,772,284
Total Current Assets 581,781,737 167,977,634 200,633,316
Total Assets 606,501,886 430,918,957 416,711,805
Shareholders’ Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders’ Equity
Capital 1 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000
Statutory reserve 28 13,801,287 13,801,287 13,897,311
Cumulative change in fair value - (20,734) (20,734)
Translation reserve (830) 1,273,511 236,323
Retained earnings 98,719,559 112,640,950 68,260,520
Net Shareholders’ Equity 172,520,016 187,695,014 142,373,420
Non-Current Liabilities
Loans and bank facilities 15-2 7,370,832 68,231,366 126,535,379
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Deferred tax liability 23 - 4,205,948 4,483,771
Lease liabilities 16 - 11,508,690 -

End of service benefit obligation 17 349,012 5,254,041 5,284,983
Payables due to acquisition 18 - 8,068,684 14,180,000
Intercompany Loans (Payables) 29-3 106,844,907 - -

Total Non-Current Liabilities 114,564,751 97,268,729 150,484,133
Current Liabilities

Loans and Bank facilities 15-1 2,237,518 81,031,947 78,069,047
Liabilities held for sale 1 259,225,844 - -

Lease liabilities 16 - 1,454,600 -
Income tax provision 23 3,964,826 6,972,104 7,223,590
Accounts payable 45,615 13,934,792 17,615,290
Due to Related Parties 29 49,029,529 - -
Payables due to acquisition 18 - 24,716,224 5,153,232
Deferred cheques -short term - 580,991 380,655
Other credit balances 19 4,913,787 17,264,556 15,412,438
Total Current Liabilities 319,417,119 145,955,214 123,854,252
Total Liabilities 433,981,870 243,223,943 274,338,385
Total Shareholders’ Equity and Liabilities 606,501,886 430,918,957 416,711,805

*The figures for the year ended December 31,2019 and January 1, 2019 has been restated as stated in
note (34)

The accompanying notes from pages (8) to (51) are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements and should be read with them together with the independent auditor’s report.

Chief Financial Officer Board Chairman
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year end December 31,
2019

Jordanian Di Not 2020
ordantan Linar ote *(Restated Note 34)

Net sales 20 326,191 705,571
Cost of sales 21 (17,268) (577,438)
Gross profit 308,923 128,133
Administrative expenses 22 (11,587,558) (3,218,728)
Impairment loss on goodwiill 5 - (1,417,104)
Expected credit loss Impairment 12,13 (441,445) -
Operating income (loss) for the year (11,720,080) (4,507,699)
Net finance cost (6,033,243) (12,201,823)
Other income 26 (29,906) 1,119,422
Loss before tax from continuing operations (17,783,229) (15,590,100)
Income tax expense 23 (40,403,560) (5,939,076)
(Loss) from continuing operations (58,186,789) (21,529,176)
Profit from discontinued operations net of tax 11 44,265,398 65,540,515
(Loss) profit from for the year (13,921,391) 44,011,339

Other comprehensive income items:

Foreign currency translation differences (1,253,607) 1,037,188

Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year (15,174,998) 45,048,527

Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share (JD/

Share) 24 (.25) 0.75

*The figures for the year ended December 31,2019 have been restated as stated in note (34)
The accompanying notes from pages (8) to (51) are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements and should be read with them together the with independent auditor’s report.

Chief Financial Officer Board Chairman
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(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Jordanian Dinar

Balance as at January 1, 2020
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Balance as of December 31,
2020

Balance as at January 1,2019

Adjustments — Note 34*

Balance as at January 1,2019
after adjustments

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Redemption of accumulated
losses of a subsidiary
Increasing capital- Note (30)

Balance as of December 31,
2019

Twenty-ninth Annual Report 2020

Cumu- (Accumu-
. Trans-
. Statutory lative . lated loss)
Capital . lation . Total
Reserve change in retained
. Reserve .
fair value earnings

60,000,000 13,801,287 (20,734) 1,273,511 112,640,950 187,695,014

- - - - (13,921,391) (13,921,391)

- - 20,734 (1,274,341) - (1,253,607)
60,000,000 13,801,287 - (830) 98,719,559 172,520,016
60,000,000 13,897,311 (20,734) 236,323 71,056,432 145,169,332

- - - - (2,795,912) (2,795,912)
60,000,000 13,897,311 (20,734) 236,323 68,260,520 142,373,420

- - - - 44,011,339 44,011,339

- - - 1,037,188 - 1,037,188
60,000,000 13,897,311 (20,734) 1,273,511 112,271,859 187,421,947

- - - - 323,200 323,200

- (96,024) - - 45,891 (50,133)
60,000,000 13,801,287 (20,734) 1,273,511 112,640,950 187,695,014

*The figures for the year ended December 31,2019 have been restated as stated in note (34)

The accompanying notes from pages (8) to (51) are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements and should be read with them together with the Independent Auditors report.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

52

Jordanian Dinar

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax from continuing operations
Adjustments for:

Profit for the year before tax from discontinued operations
Expected credit loss impairment

Intangible assets amortization

Depreciation

Right of use assets depreciation expense

Gain from sale of property, plant and equipment
Gain from sale of investment property

Provision for End of service benefit obligation
Net finance cost

Provision for slow moving items

Impairment loss on goodwill

Effect of liquidation of subsidiary

Changein:

Trade and other receivables

Inventory

Other debit balances

Accounts payable

Deferred cheques

Other credit balances

Cash generated from operating activities
Income tax paid

End of service benefit obligation paid

Net Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from advance payments for investments

€ico

For the year end December 31,

2019
Note 2020 *(Restated)
(17,783,229) (15,590,100)
11 49,121,525 67,052,340
12,13 441,445 1,936,338
5 1,663,029 1,883,682
6 80,163 4,024,737
7 1,857,467 984,603
(10,000) (9,124)
- (1,142,096)
17 983,531 1,300,907
6,033,243 13,076,051
10 3,397,996 1,094,077
5 - 1,417,104
- (50,133)
45,785,170 75,978,386
5,312,845 16,523,257
(5,625,094) (907,289)
12,032,109 (5,431,354)
(1,199,817) (3,357,298)
(476,648) 200,336
16,320,486 435,013
72,149,051 83,441,051
23 (45,931,726) (7,977,422)
17 (1,151,674) (1,331,849)
25,065,651 74,131,780
928,670 3,224,056
- 863,871
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Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (1,450) (7,391,789)
Intercompany Loan (Receivable) (21,414,623) -
gccc?ll:ii:;zon of subsidiary, Distribution rights net of cash (4,301,284) (20,657.901)
Proceeds from selling investment property - 1,545,621
Net cash flows used in investing activities (24,788,687) (22,416,142)
Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs paid (6,033,243) (13,076,051)
Loans and bank facilities (139,654,963) (55,341,113)
Due from and to related party (1,522,098) -
Intercompany Loans (Payables) 131,134,865 -

Lease Payments (1,471,008) (672,601)
Net cash flows (used in) / from financing activities (17,546,447) (69,089,765)
Net change in cash on hand and at banks (17,269,483) (17,374,127)
Cash transfer to asset for sale (22,535,141)

Cash on hand and at banks at the beginning of the year 41,435,345 57,772,284
Translation reserve (1,253,607) 1,037,188
Cash on hand and at banks at the end of the year 14 377,114 41,435,345

*The figures for the year ended December 31,2019 have been restated as stated in note (34)

The accompanying notes from pages (8) to (51) are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements and should be read with them together with the Independent Auditors report.
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1. General

Al-Egbal Investment Company-PLC (International Tobacco and Cigarettes PLC previously) was
incorporated in accordance with Jordan Companies temporary Law no. (1) for the year 1989 as a
Jordanian public shareholding company and registered in the ministry of industry and trade of Jordan
under no. (218) on June 1, 1992. with authorized paid-up capital amounted to JD 5 million (1 JD /share).
On October 10, 1993 the capital has been raised through special offering by 100% of the capital to
reach JD 10 millions. On May 5, 1998 the capital has been raised through distributing free shares by
20% of the capital to reach JD 12 million. On April 16, 2001 the Company has merged with Eqbal for
Financial Investments Company to be the capital JD 14,304,675. On April 15, 2002 the capital has raised
through distributing free shares by 5% of the capital to reach JD 15 million. On April 10, 2005 the capital
has been raised through distributing free shares by 10% to reach JD 16,500,000. On April 16, 2006 the
capital has been raised through distributing free shares by 21% of capital to reach JD 20 millions. On
February 25, 2013 the capital has raised through distributing free shares by 25% of the capital to reach
JD 25 millions.

The general assembly decided on March 24, 2016 to increase its capital by 5,000,000 shares through
capitalizing the retained earnings by an amount of JD 5,000,000 to become 30 millions (1 JD/share).

The general assembly decided in the extraordinary meeting on June 3, 2018 to increase its capital by
30,000,000 shares through capitalizing retained earnings by an amount of JD 30,000,000 to become the
authorized and paid-up capital of 60,000,000 (1 JD/share). The Company completed its legal procedures
of increasing the capital in the Ministry of Industry and Trade on July 27, 2018.

The parent Company main objectives include the following:

- Owning commercial agencies.

- Trade intermediaries (except dealing with International stock).

- Engaging in brokerage and trading tenders.

- Import and export to serve the company’s business.

- Guaranty of third parties obligations relevant to the interest of the company.

- Investment of the Company’s funds surplus in the appropriate way.

- Ownership of movable and immovable funds, for achieving the company’s objectives.

- Ownership of land and real estate for achieving the company’s objectives.

- Contracting with any government, commission, authority, company, institution or individual
interested in the goals and objectives of the company or any of them.

- Borrowing needed money from banks.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION CONSOLIDATED FINACIAL STATEMENTS
A. Basis of accounting

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international financial
reporting standards (IFRS).

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on February 28, 2023
and is subject to the General Assembly’s approval.
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This is the first set of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in which IFRS 16 Leases has been
applied. The related changes to significant accounting policies are described in note (3).

B. Basis of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the consolidated financial statements of Al-

Egbal Investment Company (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries, which subject to its control.
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to,

or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the invested entity. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which controls commences until the
date on which control ceases.

The subsidiaries’ operations results are included in consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date of owning them, which is the date on which the control commences.

The parent company controls subsidiaries when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with these subsidiaries and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
these subsidiaries.

Thus, the principle of control sets out the following three elements of control:

-1 Power of the investor over the investee;

-2 Exposure, or rights, to variable returns on the investor from its involvement with the investee; and
-3 The ability of the investor to use power over the investee

The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the
identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment.

Any gain on bargain purchases is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Extra transactions costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue
of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationship. Such amounts are generally recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date if the contingent
consideration was classified as equity. As a result, any transactions are treated through equity.
Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Non-controlling interest is measured at its proportionate share of the acquirer’s identifiable net assets
at the date of acquisition.

On loss of control, the parent-subsidiary relationship ceases to exist. The parent no longer controls
the subsidiary’s individual assets and liabilities and other elements of owners’ equity related to the
subsidiary and eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

Gain or loss associated with the loss of control attributable to the former controlling interest are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

During 2020 the Group parent-subsidiary relationship with International Cigarettes and Tobacco
Company ceased to exist after the subsidiary being liquidated.

Balances, transactions and unrealized profits and expenses resulted from transactions within the group
are eliminated when preparing this consolidated financial statement.
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- The company owns the following subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020:

Ownership  Ownership |\ o o Country of

CompanyName ~ _ Capital = _Percentage _Percentage .
_ng__zm_L_qp_emmn__o.p_emmn_

%

Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and Agencies* 6,000,000 100 100 Tobacco Jordan
R I
Spectrum International for Renewable Energy 7,000,000 100 100 e:::\r/;s N Jordan

*Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and Agencies, owns a subsidiary of which related information is as
follows:

Ownership Ownership Nature of

Company Name _Capital Percent- Percent-
-age 2020 _age2019

%

Country of
operation Operation

Invest- Cayman
ments Island

Al Fakher Holding for Tobacco Trading and Agencies* 35,450 100 100
*Al Fakher Holding for Tobacco Trading and Agencies (Cayman Island), owns subsidiaries of which
related information are as follows:

Ownership Ownership Nature of

Company Name _Capital Percent- Percent-
-age 2020 _age2019

%

Country of
operation Operation

Al Fakher Tobacco F.Z.E * 35,450 100 100 Tobacco UAE
Al Fakher International Company 7,100 100 100 Tobacco ClasTaTZn
Pioneer Venture Group Company ** 35,450 100 100 Trading UAE
Al Fakher Tobacco Factory- Turkey 18,824 100 100 Tobacco Turkey
AF Development Holding Company 709 100 100 Investment UAE

As of November 30, 2020 the group signed agreement with United Brands of Shisha Midco Limited
(the parent company) to sell the above subsidiaries, the transfer of ownership completed at February 3,
2021.
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*Al Fakher Tobacco F.Z.E (UAE), owns a subsidiary of which related information is as follows:

Partner’s Con-

ibuti

— Company Name

Al Fakher Tobacco Factory F.Z.E 7,720,000

Ownership
Percentage
— 2020 @ __ 2019

100

Ownership
Percentage

%
100

Nature of

Country of

__operation = _ Operation

Tobacco

UAE

Al Fakher Tobacco Factory owns a company in Ajman industrial area (Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and
Agencies LLC). Where the financial and administrative control is to Al Fakher Tobacco Factory under the
approval and pledge from the other partner.

**Pioneer Venture Group owns subsidiaries of which related information are as follows:

Company Name

Al Fakher Holding- USA ****

Al Fakher Tobacco Factory - Egypt *
Global Arab Trading and Export Company *

Charms for Importation and Distribution *
Al Fakher Tobacco Factory - Germany *

AF Unity Labs GmbH ***

Qameh Al Fakher Trading Est **

Poland Factory ***

AF Global Brands ***

7,100
119,662

239,325

79,775
21,734
20,153
4,567
949
709

Ownership

Capital ~ Percentage
—2020 = ___2019

100
100

100
100

100
100
100
100
100

%
100
100

100
100

100
100
100
100
100

* Pioneer Venture Group has acquired the above companies in 2018.

Ownership
Percentage

Nature of

Investment

Tobacco

Tobacco

Tobacco
Tobacco
Tobacco
Tobacco
Tobacco

Investment

Country of

_operation _Operation

USA
Egypt
Egypt
Egypt

Germany
Germany
KSA
Poland
UK

** Pioneer Venture Group has acquired Qameh Al Fakher Trading Est Company in 2018, Where the
financial and administrative control is to Pioneer Venture Group under the approval and pledge from

the other partner.

*¥** Pioneer Venture Group Has acquired/established the above-mentioned companies in 2019
**** Al Fakher Holding- USA acquired a subsidiaries of which related information is as follows:

Partner’s Con-

— Company Name L
__tribution

Al Fakher Distribution — USA
(Previously Sierra Network)

710

Ownership
Percentage
2020 2019

100

Ownership
Percentage

%

100

Nature of

Country of

__operation = _ Operation

Tobacco

USA
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Romman Incorporated 2,081,873 100 100 Tobacco USA

- The following schedule represents the financial position and financial performance of the
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020:

As of December 31,2020

Total compre-

Jordanian Dinar _ Total Assets  _Total Liabilities Net Sales hensive income
(loss) for the year
AlFakher for TobaccoTrading and Agen- /¢ 3 597 331,578,320 222,633,411 46,658,074
cies — Consolidated
Spectrum International for Renewable 8,675,743 5010,656 1127.329 (701,232)

Energy

As of December 31,2019

Total compre-

Jordanian Dinar __Total Assets  _Total Liabilities Net Sales hensive income
(loss) for the year
AlFakher forTobacco Trading and Agen- /¢ o3 co 331,578,320 222,633,411 46,658,074
cies — Consolidated
Spectrum International for Renewable 8,675,743 5.010,656 1127.329 (701.232)

Energy

C. Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
financial assets at the fair value through other comprehensive income measured at fair value, financial
assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost.

D. Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Jordanian Dinar, Where the Group’s functional
currency is USD.

E. Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements and
estimates that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates
are recognized prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements as of December 31,2020 made in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the
following notes:

= Revenue recognition: recognized over time or at a point in time.
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= consolidation: whether the Group has de facto control over an investee; and
= lease term: whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise extension options

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at 31 December 2019 that have a

significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in

the next financial year is included in the following notes:

- Revenue recognition: estimate of expected returns;

- Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which deductible
temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilized;

- Determining the fair value less costs to sell of the disposal group on the basis of significant
unobservable inputs;

- Impairment test of intangible assets and goodwill: key assumptions underlying recoverable
amounts, including the recoverability of development costs;

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

- Measurement of ECL allowance for trade receivables and contract assets: key assumptions in
determining the weighted-average loss rate; and

- Acquisition of subsidiary: fair value of the consideration transferred (including contingent
consideration) and fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, measured on a
provisional basis.

- Management periodically reassesses the economic useful lives of tangible and intangible assets
based on the general condition of these assets and the expectation for their useful economic lives
in the future.

- Management frequently reviews the lawsuits raised against the group based on a legal study
prepared by the company’s legal advisors. This study highlights potential risks that the group may
incurred in the future.

- Management estimates the provision to decrease inventory to net realizable value if the cost of
inventory may not be recoverable, damaged, wholly or partially obsolete, and it selling price to fall
below cost or any other factors that causes the recoverable amount to be lower than its carrying
amount.

- Management estimates the provision for income tax in accordance with the prevailing laws and
regulations.

Fair value measurement:
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
This includes a valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer.

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If
third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then
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the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion
that these valuations meet the requirements of the Standards, including the level in the fair value
hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far
as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

— Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Group
recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

- Note (9): Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
- Note (10): Investment property
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

Changes in significant accounting policies

The accounting policies applied by the group in these financial statements for the year ended
December 31,2020 are the same as those applied by the Company in its financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2019, except for the following new International Financial Reporting
Standards or amendments that become effective after January 1, 2020:

- Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards. (Applied in January 1,
2020)

- Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8). (Applied in January 1, 2020)

- Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3). (Applied in January 1, 2020)

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7).

- Extension of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 (Amendment to IFRS 4)

- The application of these new standards and amended standards did not have a significant effect on
the Company’s financial statements.

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Group:
A. Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; FVOCI — debt
investment; FVOCI - equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified
on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

— itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise the requirements to be measured at amortized
cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly meets reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets — Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

- therisks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.
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Financial assets - Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on

initial recognition. ‘Interest’is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. In
assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that
it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).
A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable compensation for early termination of
the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual
par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may
also include reasonable compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Financial assets at FVTPL Net gains and losses, including any interest or divi-
dend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amor-
tized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.

Financial assets at amortized cost Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit
or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income calculated using the effective inter-
est method, foreign exchange gains and losses and

Debt investments at FVOCI impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecog-
nition, gains and losses accumulated in OCl are
reclassified to profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains
and losses are recognized in OCl and are never re-
classified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI
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Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in
profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of financial
position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In
these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on
the modified terms is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and
the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred, or liabilities assumed) is recognized
in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

v. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures.

Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host
contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized in profit or loss.
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The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows
associated with highly probable forecast transactions arising from changes in foreign exchange rates
and interest rates and certain derivatives and non-derivative financial liabilities as hedges of foreign
exchange risk on a net investment in a foreign operation.

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Group documents the risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Group also documents the economic
relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in
cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are expected to offset each other.

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes
in the fair value of the derivative is recognized in OCl and accumulated in the hedging reserve. The
effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative that is recognized in OCl is limited

to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item, determined on a present value basis,

from inception of the hedge. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is
recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Group designates only the change in fair value of the spot
element of forward exchange contracts as the hedging instrument in cash flow hedging relationships.
The change in fair value of the forward element of forward exchange contracts (forward points) is
separately accounted for as a cost of hedging and recognized in a costs of hedging reserve within
equity.
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B. Leases

I. Asalessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated
over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property
and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any,
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset
leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- The exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment. When the lease liability is remeasured
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in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in
property, as a separate line item and lease liabilities as a separate line item as well in the statement of
financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases, including IT equipment. The Group recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ii. Asalessor
At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative standalone prices.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the
case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the
Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life
of the asset. The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in IFRS 9 to the net
investment in the lease The Company further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values
used in calculating the gross investment in the lease.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-
lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate
the consideration in the contract.

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in IFRS 9 to the net investment
in the lease . The Group further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values used in
calculating the gross investment in the lease.

The Group recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight line
basis over the lease term as part of ‘other revenue’,

C. Property, plant and Equipment

- Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

e€ico o7



Twenty-ninth Annual Report 2020

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the property, plant and
equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separated items of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are
recognized net within the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

- Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized.

Ongoing costs of repair and maintenance of property, plant and equipment are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.

- Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is
generally recognized in profit or loss. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for the current and previous year are as
follows:

Items of property, plant and equipment Depreciation rate
%
Vehicles 25-20
Other equipment 25-20
Computers and office equipment 25-20
Furniture and fixtures 10-20
Tools 25
Machines and equipment 10-20
Buildings 5
Leasehold improvements 20

The group reviews the useful lives and depreciation for the property, plant and equipment at the end of
each financial year.
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D. Impairment

i. Non-derivative financial assets

Financial instruments and contract assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on:

— financial assets measured at amortized cost;

- debt investments measured at FVOCI; and

- contract assets.

The Group also recognises loss allowances for ECLs on lease receivables, which are disclosed as part of
trade and other receivables.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following,

which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

— other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables (including lease receivables) and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment, that includes forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
90 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the
effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt

securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events

that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

— The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

- Itis probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognized in OCI.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For individual customers,
the Group has a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount when the financial asset is 180 days past
due based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets. For corporate customers, the Group
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether
there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

ii. Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other

than biological assets, investment property, inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets) to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs. Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
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to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in
the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

E. Investment in property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Investments Property is recognized initially at cost. Subsequent to the
initial recognition their fair values are disclosed in the notes of the consolidated financial statements,
independent real-estate experts based on market values, in an active market, revaluate investment
property annually.

F. Intangible Assets

Goodwill

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the fair value of the consideration transferred;
plus The recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire; plus the fair value of the
pre-existing equity interest in the acquire; less The net recognized amount (fair value) of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. In respect of equity-accounted
investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment, and
any impairment loss is allocated to the carrying amount of the equity-accounted investee as a whole.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired through other than acquisition are recognized at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets, which have finite useful lives, are amortized over their useful lives. Amortization is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income; however,
intangible assets without definite useful lives are required to be tested for impairment as of the date the
consolidated financial statement. Impairment loss shall be recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Intangible assets arising from company operation are not capitalized and should be recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when incurred.

Intangible assets are assessed at each consolidated reporting date to determine whether there is any
objective evidence that they are impaired as well as the useful lives of the intangible asset are annually
reassessed and any adjustments raised are recognized in the subsequent years.

Amortization

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is
generally recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Goodwill is not amortized.

G. Revenues recognition

Revenue is recognized when the Group transfers the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
customer and cash recovery of the consideration is probable, when the associated costs and costs of
goods can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management control over the goods. Also,
when there is expected economic financial benefits associated from the sale and if trade discount and
volume rebate can be measured reliably in order that the trade discount and volume rebate is recorded
as recognized.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company
recognizes revenue when it transfers control - at a point in time or over time - over a good or service to
a customer in accordance with IFRS 15 as follows:

1. ldentify the contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or
more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations.

2. ldentify the performance obligations in the contract.

3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract. For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the transaction price to
each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

5. Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation at a point in time or
over time.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes revenue over time, if one of the

following criteria is met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s
performance as the Company performs; or

- The Company'’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced; or

- The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company
and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.
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H. Foreign currency

- Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to
Jordanian Dinar at the exchange rate at that date.

The foreign currency gain (loss) on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in
Jordanian Dinar at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest rate and payments during
the year, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated to JD at the exchange rate at the end of
the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value
are retranslated to Jordanian Dinar at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation of foreign currencies to Jordanian Dinar are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income.

- Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated into JD at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses
of foreign operations are translated into JD at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognized in OCl and accumulated in the translation reserve, except
to the extent that the translation difference is allocated to NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant
influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign
operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group disposes of
part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative
amount is reattributed to NCl. When the Group disposes of only part of an associate or joint venture
while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount
is reclassified to profit or loss.

I. Fair value for financial assets
Fair values represent the amount with which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, in a
transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

The closing prices (purchase of assets / sale of liabilities) on the consolidated financial statements date
in effective markets, represents the fair value of financial assets and liabilities that have market prices.

In the absence of quoted prices or lack of active trading of some financial assets or the in absence of an
active market, fair value is determined by comparing with current market value of financial instrument,
or by using the discounted future cash flows discounted at the rate of similar financial instrument or by
use the net assets value method of investments.
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J. Offsetting

Financial liabilities are set off against financial assets, and the net amount is shown in the consolidated
financial position only when the obliging legal rights are available or when settled on net basis or the
realization of assets or settlement of liabilities is done at the same time.

K. Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability.

L. Finance expenses

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings. All borrowing costs that are not directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using the effective interest
method.

M. Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using

the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the
recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements

N. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income except to the extent that

it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when

they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the consolidated
reporting date.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Current tax payable is in accordance with prevailing income tax law in the countries where the
companies are located.

O. Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS

is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

P. FORTHCOMING REQUIREMENTS

The following new and revised IFRSs have been issued but are not effective yet, the Group has not
applied the following new and revised IFRSs that are available for early application but are not effective
yet:

Standards
® |nternational Financial Reporting Standards (17): IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective on Jan 1st,
2021 With early application allowed only for companies that have applied IFRS (9).)

Amendments

® Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS.
® Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3).

® Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8).

The Group anticipates that each of the above standers and interpretations (amendments) will be

adopted in the consolidated financial statements by its date mentioned above without having any
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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4. Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a group of components of the Group affected by risks and returns that
distinguish it from others and engages in producing products or services known as operating segments
or engages in producing products or services within specific economic environment that distinguish it

from other sectors known as geographical segments.

A. Operating Segment

The Group operates its activities in major operating segments, which represents the follows:

Sector Segment:

- Tobacco manufacturing and trading.
- Investments.

- Energy.

Geographical Segment:

- Middle East.

- Europe, UK

- USA.

Company Name Sector Country

Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and Agencies Tobacco Middle East
Spectrum International for Renewable Energy Renewable Middle East
Al Fakher Tobacco F.Z.E Tobacco Middle East
Al Fakher International Company Tobacco Europe
Pioneer Venture Group Company Investment Middle East
Al Fakher Tobacco Factory- Turkey Tobacco Europe
AF Development Holding Company Investment Middle East
Al Fakher Tobacco Factory F.Z.E Tobacco Middle East
Al Fakher Holding- USA Investment USA
Al Fakher Tobacco Factory - Egypt Tobacco Middle East
Global Arab Trading and Export Company Tobacco Middle East
Charms for Importation and Distribution Tobacco Middle East
Al Fakher Tobacco Factory - Germany * Tobacco Europe
AF Unity Labs GmbH Tobacco Europe
Qameh Al Fakher Trading Est Tobacco Middle East
Poland Factory Tobacco Europe
AF Global Brands Tobacco UK
Al Fakher Distribution — USA (Previously Sierra Network) Tobacco USA
Romman Incorporated Tobacco USA
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A. Amortisation
The amortization of Websites/Tradename, Non-Compete Agreement and Customers/Relationships is
allocated administrative expenses.

B. Impairment test

No impairment losses were recognised in 2020. An impairment loss of 1,417,104 JD was recognised in
2019 in respect of the Group’s investment made in Turkey. There have been no reversals of impairment
losses.

Impairment testing

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets considered significant in comparison to the Group’s

total carrying amount of such assets have been allocated to cash generating units or groups of cash
generating units as follows:

The recoverable amount of all the above Cash Generating Units (CGUs) has been calculated with
reference to its value in use. The key assumptions of this calculation are shown below:

Sierra Network _ AsofDecember31,
Jordanian Dinar 2020 @ __ 2019
Period on which management approved forecasts are based 5 years 5 years
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period 2.0% 2%
Discount rate 16% 13%

The 2020 discount rate was a post-tax measure estimated based on the historical industry average
weighted average cost of capital, with a possible average debt leveraging of 15.5% at an average
market interest rate of 6.5%, along with an average cost of equity of 17.7%.

KM Distribution _ AsofDecember31,
Jordanian Dinar 2020  __ 2019
Period on which management approved forecasts are based 5 years 5 years
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period 2.0% 2.0%
Discount rate 17.8% 14.8%

The 2020 discount rate was a post-tax measure estimated based on the historical industry average
weighted average cost of capital, with a possible average debt leveraging of 14.0% at an average
market interest rate of 6.5%, along with a cost of equity of 19.9%.

Egypt Factory — AsofDecember31,
Jordanian Dinar 2020 @ __ 2019
Period on which management approved forecasts are based 4 years 4 years
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period 2.0% 2.0%
Discount rate 20.5% 14.2%

The 2020 discount rate was a post tax measure estimated based on the historical industry average
weighted average cost of capital, with a possible average debt leveraging of 14.0% at an average
market interest rate of 6.5%, along with a cost of equity of 23.0%.
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Romman, Inc. —AsofDecember31,
Jordanian Dinar 2020 @ __ 2019
Period on which management approved forecasts are based 5 years 5 years
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period 2.0% 2.0%
Discount rate 14.5% 10.5%

The 2020 discount rate was a post tax measure estimated based on the historical industry average
weighted average cost of capital, with a possible average debt leveraging of 22.0% at an average
market interest rate of 6.5%, along with a cost of equity of 17.0%.

Ajman Factory — AsofDecember31,
Jordanian Dinar 2020 @ __ 2019
Period on which management approved forecasts are based NA NA
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period 2.0% 2.0%
Discount rate 11.5% 9.5%

* 1 year budgeted EBITDA growth rate

The 2020 discount rate was a post-tax measure estimated based on the historical industry average
weighted average cost of capital, with a possible average debt leveraging of 14.0% at an average
market interest rate of 6.5%, along with a cost of equity of 12.5%.

Jimmy’z development As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2020 @ __ 2019
Period on which management approved forecasts are based 5 years 6 years
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period 2.0% 2.0%
Discount rate 23.5% 29.0%

The 2020 discount rate was a post-tax measure estimated based on the historical industry average
weighted average cost of capital, at an average market interest rate of 6.5%, along with a cost of equity
of 100%.

Management have used an approved forecast period of three to five years because this is the most
relevant period that can be reasonably estimated for each of the above CGUs as at the valuation date
with a reasonable amount of foresight. Projections longer than 5 year would be too far away to be
reliably estimated.

The long-term growth rate selected for the CGUs is in line with the long-term average growth rate for
the market of 2%, at which a business would be expected to a grow at in the long term once they reach
a mature stage.

The short-term growth rates used in value in use calculation reflect the average growth rate
experienced by the Group for the products globally over the last 4 to 5 years and is in line with current
business development efforts and strategic initiatives being undertaken by the Management.

Each of the assumptions used above are based on inputs that’s are widely available in the market
along with the valuators experience in the market. While all valuations are sensitive to key inputs to the
calculation such as discount rates and long-term growth rates, the fair value of each investment was
found to be sufficiently above the carrying value of each item as part of this exercise.
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7. Right of use assets

Jordanian Dinar

Cost

Balance as of January 1, 2020
Additions

Disposal

Reclassification to asset held for sale

Balance as of December 31, 2020

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of January 1, 2020
Depreciation

Disposal

Reclassification to asset held for sale

Balance as of December 31, 2020

Net book value as of December 31, 2020

Jordanian Dinar

Cost

Balance as of January 1, 2019

Rightofuse asset recognized on initial application of

IFRS 16

Balance as of December 31, 2019,

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of January 1, 2019
Depreciation for the year

Balance as of December 31, 2019,

Net book value as of December 31,2019

Twenty-ninth Annual Report 2020

As of December 31,
2020

13,635,891
830,459
(695,137)
(13,605,519)

165,694

984,603
1,857,467
(95,875)
(2,640,857)

105,338

60,356

As of December 31,
2019

13,635,891

13,635,891

984,603

984,603

12,651,288
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8. Investment property

Jordanian Dinar Piece As of December 31,

Country Area Land no number 2020 2019

UAE - Ajman * Aljorf 2S 2/1/271 - 271,028
- 271,028

*The Investment property has been transferred to held for sale asset, the fair value for Ajman’s land as
of December 31, 2020 according to average real estate expert valuation amounted to JD 328,100 (2019:
JD 328,100) the fair value measurement for land has been categorized under level 2 fair value based on
the inputs that has been determined either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices
of similar assets).

9. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

. . As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar
2020 2019
Unquoted market prices * 150,525 150,525
150,525 150,525

* This balance represents the fair value of non-listed company in the financial assets markets for the
Group’s share in North Industrial Company, the Group has determined the fair value of this account
using Net Assets Method for the last audited financial statements available.

10. Inventory
As of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar

2020 2019

Goods in transit 1,491,615 4,529,588
Work in process - 172,003
Finished goods - 15,083,724
Raw material - 17,766,652
Spare parts - 777,264
Advertisement and accessories - 1,089,752
Consumable goods - 231,187
Inventory on consignment - -

1,491,615 39,650,170
Provision for slow-moving items * - (2,989,870)

1,491,615 36,660,300

Nothing is included within inventories expected to be recovered in more than 12 months.

Raw materials, consumables and changes in finished goods and work in progress recognised as cost of sales
in the year amounted to JD 91,646,049 (2019: JD 107,538,284). The write-down of inventories to net realizable
value amounted to JD 3,398,237 (2019: JD 2,231,932). The reversal of write-downs amounted to JD 3,835,690
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(2019: JD 440,289). The write-down and reversal are included in cost of sales and distribution expenses.
*The Group’s management (represented by sales and marketing department) calculate the provision
for slow moving items which will not be used either in production process or it is not expected to be
sold in the coming period.

The movement on the provision for slow moving items was as follow:
For the Year Ended December 31,

Jordanian Dinar

2020 2019
Balance as of 1 January 2,989,870 1,145,970
Provision made during the year 3,397,996 2,231,932
Disposed/Reversed during the year (3,835,834) (388,032)
Reclassification to asset held for sale (2,552,032) -
- 2,989,870

11. Assets and liability held for sale

The subsidiary company (Fakher Holding for Tobacco Trading and Agencies (Cayman Island)) entered
into an agreement on 30 October 2020 with United Brands of Shisha Midco Limited (the Parent
Company) to sell all the subsidiary companies of Fakher Holding for Tobacco Trading and Agencies
(Cayman Island) and AlFakher Topaco M.M.H (UAE) as listed below:

*Al Fakher Holding for Tobacco Trading and Agencies (Cayman Island) subsidiaries:
Ownership Ownership

CompanyName  _Capital Percentage Percentage
2020  __ 2019

%

Nature of Country of

_operation = _Operation

Al Fakher Tobacco F.Z.E * 35,450 100 100 Tobacco UAE
Al Fakher International Company 7,100 100 100 Tobacco Clifamnzn
Pioneer Venture Group Company ** 35,450 100 100 Trading UAE
Al Fakher Tobacco Factory- Turkey 18,824 100 100 Tobacco Turkey
AF Development Holding Company 709 100 100 Investment UAE

*Al Fakher Tobacco F.Z.E (UAE), a subsidiary:

Partner’s Contri- Ownership Ownership Nature of Country of

— CompanyName . Percentage Percentage .
— bution operation Operation
— 2020 __ 2019

%

Al Fakher Tobacco Factory F.Z.E 7,720,000 100 100 Tobacco UAE
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Results of the discontinued operations

Jordanian Dinar

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Selling and distribution expenses
Expected credit loss Impairment

Operating income for the year

Net finance cost
Other income

Profit for the year before tax from discontinued operations

Income tax expense

Result from operations activities, net of tax

For the year end December 31,

2020 2019
219,438,925 223,055,169
(91,541,621) (107,025,366)
127,897,304 116,029,803
(51,789,999) (31,392,468)
(26,432,528) (14,615,635)

(283,600) (1,936,338)
49,391,177 68,085,362
(1,153,430) (874,228)

883,778 (158,794)
49,121,525 67,052,340
(4,856,127) (1,511,825)
44,265,398 65,540,515

No impairment has been recorded on the asset held for sale since the fair value is greater than the
carrying value of the entities sold.

Assets held for sale/disposal group

84

Jordanian Dinar

Assets classified as held for sale/disposal groups:
Intangible assets

Property, plant, and equipment

Right of use assets

Investment property

Inventory

Trade and other receivables

Due From Related Parties

Other debit balances

Cash on hand and at banks

Asset held for sale

Liabilities classified within disposal groups:

End of service benefit obligation

€ico

As of December 31,

2020

2019

220,735,112
27,524,674
10,964,662

271,027
37,395,783
19,342,328
86,212,115
11,007,952
22,535,141

435,988,794

4,736,886
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12.

Intercompany Loans (Payables)
Lease liabilities

Income tax provision

Accounts payable

Due to Related Parties
Payables due to acquisition
Deferred cheques

Other credit balances

Liabilities held for sale

Trade and other receivables

Jordanian Dinar

Trade receivables

Advance payments to suppliers

Expected credit loss provision*

24,289,958
11,723,476
5,227,118
12,689,360
138,627,455
33,155,995
104,343
28,671,253

Twenty-ninth Annual Report 2020

259,225,844

As of December 31,

2020

2019

1,056,089
506,349

27,489,620
329,219

1,562,438

27,818,839

(854,209)

(2,348,559)

708,229

25,470,280

*The movement on the expected credit loss provision was as follow:

13.

Jordanian Dinar

Balance as of January 1,
Additions during the year

Reclassification to asset held for sale

Other debit balances

Jordanian Dinar

Prepayments
Prepaid income tax
Refundable deposits *

Employee’s receivable

For the Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019
2,348,559 412,221
892,086 1,936,338
(1,601,228) -
854,209 2,348,559

As of December 31,

2020 2019
114,816 3,989,510
457,685 603,398
151,307 19,341,518
31,749 102,067
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Sales and income tax deposits

Taxes on interests

Advance payment on projects under construc-

tion

Excise tax

Other

Insurance receivable

Lease receivable - short term

Lease receivable — Long term

24,986 381,792
158,111 158,053
2,484,745 2,215,612

- 224,786
2,902 349,757
400,000 734,567
332,817 220,749
4,159,118 28,321,809
2,112,697 1,324,638
6,271,815 29,646,447

*This account represents cash at bank is restricted because it is held by the bank as security for loans.

The movement on the expected credit loss provision

Jordanian Dinar

Balance as of Jan

Provision during the year

14. Cash on hand and at banks

Jordanian Dinar

Cash on hand
Current accounts at banks

Deposits at banks *

As of December 31,

2020 2019
334,567 -
334,567 -

As of December 31,

2020 2019
615 477,717
376,499 40,229,454

- 728,174
377,114 41,435,345

* The maturity date of the deposits is on monthly basis and the interest rate is 4% for the year ended 31

December 2020, (31 December 2019 is 4%.).
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15.

Loans and bank facilities

15-1 Loans and bank facilities — Short term

In Jordanian Dinar As of December 31,
Bank’s name Facility type 2020 2019
Bank of Jordan Overdraft - 5,029,326
Housing bank Jordan Overdraft - 1,965,877
Bank of Jordan (1) Loan - 12,762,000
Bank of Jordan (2) Loan 37,299 34,934
Bank of Jordan (3) Loan 129,300 129,300
Bank of Jordan (4) Loan 37,116 37,116
Housing Bank (5) Loan 1,650,552 1,650,552
Credit Suisse (6) Syndicated loan - 59,083,333
Housing Bank (7) Loan 132,229 132,229
Housing Bank (8) Loan 251,022 207,280
2,237,518 81,031,947

15-2 Loans and Bank facilities — Long term

In Jordanian Dinar As of December31,
Bank’s name Facility type 2020 2019
Bank of Jordan (2) Loan 220,957 248,316
Bank of Jordan (3) Loan 484,776 581,538
Bank of Jordan (4) Loan 136,092 173,208
Housing Bank (5) Loan 3,824,991 5,488,028
Credit Suisse (6) Syndicated loan - 59,083,333
Housing Bank (7) Loan 665,005 786,341
Housing Bank (8) Loan 2,039,011 1,870,602
7,370,832 68,231,366

15-3 Loans and bank facilities - Long term

1.

Al Fakher Tobacco for Trading and Agencies Company — subsidiary company obtained a credit
facilities in the year 2013 from the Bank of Jordan amounted 25,000,000 USD, (17,700,000 JD) which
represent a reducing loan, that will be settled in one payment on January 4, 2014 with a LIBOR

of +2%. The loan payment due date has been extended during the years 2014, 2015, 2016 and
2017,2018 and lastly in March 19, 2019, as the loan payments due date has been extended to be
settled in one payment on March 31, 2019 with a LIBOR 3 months + %3.75 and with a limit of 6%
and with the guarantee of Al- Egbal investment company.
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2.

16.

Spectrum Company has signed an agreement to grant a loan from bank of Jordan within the
program of advances of the Central Bank for the industrial sectors, as the loan is distributed
according to the invoices submitted by the company for disbursments and any completed works
with a percentage of 100% of the value of invoices and works with a maximum value of JD 571,200.
The loan is subject to 4.5% and commission of zero and repaid on equal monthly premium inclusive
of interest and shall commence payment of 108 equal monthly payments including interest, the first
installment after 6 months from the date of execution until full repayment.

Spectrum Company has signed an agreement to grant a loan from bank of Jordan within the
program of advances of the Central Bank for the industrial sectors, as the loan is distributed
according to the invoices submitted by the company for disbursments and any completed works
with a percentage of 100% of the value of invoices and works with a maximum value of JD 905,000.
The loan is subject to 4 % and commission of zero and repaid on equal monthly premium inclusive
of interest and shall commence payment of 84 equal monthly payments including interest, the first
installment after 6 months from the date of execution until full repayment.

Spectrum Company has signed an agreement to grant a loan from bank of Jordan to purchase a
land for Al zaytoun maounten project amounted to JD 282,000. The loan is subject to 8.375% and
commission of zero and repaid on equal monthly premium inclusive of interest and shall commence
payment of 84 equal monthly payments including interest, the first installment after 6 months from
the date of execution until full repayment.

Al-Fakher for Trading Tobacco and Agencies Company obtained credit facilities from the Housing
Bank with an amount of USD 14 million for the purpose of distributing dividends, where the loan

is paid over maximum seven years including one year of grace period and installments are paid
monthly per annum amounted to USD 194,000 and by the end of the seventh year, the remaining
balance of the loan will be paid in one installment with interest of 1 month LIBOR + 2.25 with
minimum of 3.25% with a guarantee of Egbal Investment Company.

Al Fakher for trading tobacco and agencies company - cayman island obtained a bank loan
amounted to USD 250 million with an interest rate from 3% to 3.25% + 3 month Libor. The loan has
been closed and paid in full in 2019.

Spectrum international signed an agreement with Housing Bank for Ward project with a value

of JD 1,190,000. the loan will be paid with a 108 installments included the interest (4%), the first
installment will start on 1/10/2019.

Spectrum international signed an agreement with Housing Bank for mac project with a value of JD
2,700,000. the loan will be paid with a 108 installments included the interest, the first installment
will start on 1/10/2019.

LEASE LIABILITIES
Finance Lease Lability had been presented in the consolidated financial statement as follow:
As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar
2020 2019

Finance Lease Lability - Current - 1,454,600
Finance Lease Lability - Non-Current - 11,508,690

- 12,963,290

88
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17. END OF SERVICE BENEFIT OBLIGATION

End of service indemnity is calculated accordance with IFRS, the movement on the provision during the
year was as follows:

For the year ended as of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Balance as of 1 January 5,254,041 5,284,983
Provision for the year 983,531 1,300,907
Paid during the year (1,151,674) (1,331,849)
Reclassification to asset held for sale (4,736,886) -
Balance at the end of the year 349,012 5,254,041

Actuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted
averages).

For the year ended as of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Discount rate 3% 3%
Future salary growth 3% 3%
Withdrawal Rate* 2.39% -6% 2.39% -6%

* Male: Age-related scale, starting at 5% p.a. at age 20 gradually reducing in five-year age bands to
2.39% from age 55 onwards.

Female: Age-related scale, starting at 6% p.a. at age 20 gradually reducing in five-year age bands to
2.87% from age 55 onwards.

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions,

holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below.

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Jordanian Dinar
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% Movement) 2,572 (42,572) (730,312) 730,312
Future salary growth (1% Movement) 49,287 (49,287) 730,312 (730,312)
Withdrawal Rate (10% Movement) 4,885 (34,885) (187,044) 194,400
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18. PAYABLES DUE TO ACQUISITION

The details of payables due to acquisition as below:

As of December 31, 2020 As of December 31, 2019

Acquisition Short Term Long term Short Term Long term
In Jordanian Dinar
Acquisition of Al Fakher distribution USA - - 2,494,482 -
AC(.]U.IS.Itlon of the rights of distribution i i 14,180,000 i
activities
Acquisition of Romman incorporated - - 2,077,370 2,104,312
Acquisition of Jimmyz - - 5,964,372 5,964,372

- - 24,716,224 8,068,684

19. OTHER CREDIT BALANCES

As of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Bonus provision 102,428 7,972,548
Accrued expenses 1,382,868 6,110,252
Contingent liability provision 2,718,153 1,812,708
Shareholders deposits 579,221 603,454
Accrued interest 23,083 38,396
Jordanian universities provision 76,448 76,448
Board of directors’ remuneration - 45,000
Humanitarian cases fund - 111,594
Social security deposits 5,810 70,470
Others 25,776 423,686
4,913,787 17,264,556

20. NET SALES

A. Revenue streams

The Group generates revenue primarily from the sale of Tobacco Molasses and renewable energy. Other
sources of revenue include gain from sale of investment properties and immaterial amounts some
scrap sales and others.

B. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary
geographical market, major products and service lines and timing of revenue recognition.
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Jordanian Dinar

Primary geographical markets

Middle East

Jordanian Dinar

Timing of revenue recognition

Products and services transferred over time

Tobacco Renewable Energy
2019 2020 2019
- 326,191 705,571
- 326,191 705,571

For the year end December 31,

2020 2019
326,191 705,571
326,191 705,571

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from

contracts with customers.

Jordanian Dinar

Receivables

Contract assets included in other debit bal-

ance

Contract liabilities included in other credit

balance

As of December 31,

2020 2019
- 63,579,520
2,445,514 2,882,502
- (966,250)
2,445,514 65,495,772

C. Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Group
recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer. The following table
provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in
contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition

policies. For the accounting policy for onerous contracts:

21. COST OF SALES

Jordanian Dinar

Consumed materials and tools

For the year end December 31,

2020 2019
17,268 577,438
17,268 577,438
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22, ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year end December 31,
Jordanian Dinar

2020 2019
Staff Cost 584,558 607,923
Consultancy & Professional Fees 5,597,121 461,167
Commissions & Bank Charges 3,262,223 102,135
Taxes Expenses (other than income Tax) 906,957 -
Donation 511,289 340,335
Damaged Materials & Samples 265,667 -
Business Travel 146,500 218,509
Insurance 5,982 -
Rent 17,372 29,010
Utilities 25,926 221,373
Office Exp. 61,009 141,973
Consumable Materials & Tools 121 108,149
Freight & Custom Duty 1,672 2,262
Depreciation & Amortization 123,790 43,838
Regulatory & Trademarks 64,738 165,265
Others 12,633 776,789

11,587,558 3,218,728

23. INCOME TAX

Income tax expense is recognized based on the group’s tax consultant and group management
estimates of the annual weighted average income tax rate expected for the full financial year applied to
the pre-tax income of the year.

Recognised in the income statement:

Jordanian Dinar For the year ended as of December 31,
2020 2019
Current tax expense 46,436,803 8,962,855
Effect of deferred tax expense - (1,511,954)
Tax of asset held of asset (6,033,243) (1,511,825)
Income tax expense 40,403,560 5,939,076

The movement on income tax provision during the year was as follows:

Jordanian Dinar For the year ended as of December 31,
2020 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,972,104 7,223,590
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Income tax expense for the year 46,436,803 8,962,855
Income tax paid during the year (45,931,726) (9,214,341)
Impact of deferred tax (3,512,355) -
Balance at the end of the year 3,964,826 6,972,104

Income tax expense recognized based on group’s management estimate of enacted of average annual
tax rate for the whole financial year which is applied on the profit before tax for the year.

Deferred tax assets
The movement on deferred tax assets during the year was as follows:

In Jordanian Dinar

Items Balance at January Net Change during Reclass to asset held Balance at
1,2020 the year for sale December 31,2020
Deferred tax assets 1,314,069 3,416,758 (4,730,827) -
1,314,069 3,416,758 (4,730,827) -
Items Balance at January Net Change during Balance at
1,2019 the year December 31,2019
Deferred tax assets 129,946 1,184,123 1,314,069
129,946 1,184,123 1,314,069

Deferred tax liability
* Represent prior period unrecorded tax benefits due to uncertain tax position for potential incremental

corporate income taxes

In Jordanian Dinar

Items Balance at January Net Change during Reclass to asset Balance at
1, 2020 the year held for sale December 31,2020
Deferred tax liability 4,205,948 (4,205,948) - -
4,205,948 (4,205,948) - -

* Represent prior period unrecorded tax benefits due to uncertain tax position for potential incremental
corporate income taxes.
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Items Balance at January Net Change during Balance at

1,2019 the year December 31,2019
Deferred tax liability 4,483,771 (277,823) 4,205,948
4,483,771 (277,823) 4,205,948

24, EARNINGS PER SHARE

Jordanian Dinar For the year ended as of December 31,
2020 2019
Profit for the year (JD) (15,174,998) 44,011,339
Weighted average for number of shares (Share) 60,000,000 60,000,000
Basic Earnings per share (.25) 0.75
Diluted earnings per share (.25) 0.75

The earnings per share was calculated by dividing the profit for the year on the number of outstanding
shares of 60 million shares as of December 31,2020.

25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The contingent liabilities at the date of these consolidated financial statements date are as the
following:

Jordanian Dinar As of December 31,
2020 2019
Bank guarantees 4,222,095 18,373,330
4,222,095 18,373,330

Against cash margins represented as follow:

Jordanian Dinar As of December 31,
2020 2019
Cash margins 1,154,252 14,159,381
1,154,252 14,159,381
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Al-Fakher Company for Tobacco Trading and Agencies has filed a lawsuit with the Tax Court of First
Instance, the subject of which is to challenge the decision of the objection body to the Income and
Sales Tax Department, which included imposing income tax on the company for the years 2012, 2013,
2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017, at an amount of 2,900,947 JOD. The opinion of the group’s management
and its legal advisor at that time was that the possibility of winning the case was high.

During the subsequent period in 2021, final decisions were issued by the Court of Excellence obligating
the company to pay the above amount and obligating it to pay new fines amounting to 780,000 JOD
and to prevent the Income Tax Department from claiming any other differences, the company made
sufficient provisions, the company during the subsequent period paid all amounts consequential

The company received the decision of the objection board issued on June 4, 2020, containing the
income tax department’s notification that the company’s net income for the year 2018 after the
amendment is 208,424,439 JOD, and considering that the taxable income is 210,068,806 JOD, and
considering that the tax due on the company is 41,684,887 JOD and the company’s claim for the tax
balance after deducting previous payments in the amount of 35,477,398 JOD, excluding fines. The
Court of First Instance issued a decision to seize the funds of the Al-Fakher Tobacco Trading Company
and its movable and immovable agencies. The opinion of the group’s management and its legal advisor
at that time was that the possibility of canceling the imposed tax was very high

The Income and Sales Tax Department issued its decision for the fiscal year 2018 and claimed the
company for income tax differences of 35,477,398 JOD, where the company appealed the decision to
the court, then the company appealed the decision to the court, then the company made a settlement
and paid 35,522,639 JOD

The company has filed a lawsuit with the Income Tax Department to prevent the department from
claiming the sales tax on the benefits of the Bahrain Housing Bank loan for the years 2017, 2018 and
2019/ In the opinion of the company and its legal advisor, the company has a high chance of winning
the case.

The former partner of Al-Fakher Distribution Company (formerly Sierra Network) filed a claim for
compensation for the value of the sale of the company against each of Al-Fakher Distribution Company,
Al-Fakher Holding Company - America and Al-Fakher Holding Company for Tobacco Trading and
Agencies, claiming a compensation of 2,493,160 JOD

In the opinion of the group’s management and its legal advisor, the possibility of winning the lawsuit is

very high, as the amount claimed for compensation, and if paid, will be deducted from the payments of
the previous partners of the company.
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26. OTHER INCOME

For the year end December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Foreign exchange rate and prices (35,665) (12,013)
Gain from sale of investment property - 531,123
Prior year expenses - (3,542)
P&L from sale of fixed assets - (5,739)
Other 5,759 609,593

(29,906) 1,119,422

27. ADVANCE PAYMENT FOR INVESTMENTS

The details for the advance payments for investments are as follows:

Spectrum International for Renewable Energy- has invest in a joint project in Sol In Par S.R.L - Italy,
where the company paid an advance payment amounted to JD 863,871. During 2019 this project had
been canceled and all the paid amounts had been refunded.

28. STATUTORY RESERVE

The amounts in this account represent what transferred from the annual profit before taxes and fees.
By 10% during the year and previous years, according to the Companies Act, and is not available

for distribution to shareholders. The statutory reserve calculated based on the results of standalone
financial statements for Egbal Investment Company and it’s subsidiaries which subject to Jordanian
Companies Law.

29. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Represents balances and transactions with main partners and administrators. Also include those
transactions with entities that wholly or partially have an influence on these parties. The Group’s
management approves pricing policies and terms of these transactions

29.1 Related Parties Balances
The balances with related parties included in the Trade and other receivables in the consolidated
statement of financial position are as follows:

Jordanian Dinar For the year end December 31,
Due from Related Parties 2020 2019
Pioneer Venture Group* 138,611,769 -

Al Fakher Tobacco Factory- Turkey* 400,516 -

AF Development Holding 15,757 -

AF Global Brands 18,335 -

AF Unity Labs 10,490 -
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Idealism General Trading FZ-LLC** - 21,552,201
Al-Fakher Irag** - 10,939,333
Al-Motwaseta Al-Jadeeda** - 3,253,973
Al Mithaliyah - CADF** - 89,206
AL Mithalyeh - Egypt DF** - 255,187
139,056,867 36,089,900
Jordanian Dinar For the year end December 31,
Due to Related Parties 2020 2019
Pioneer Venture Group* 49,029,529 -
49,029,529 -

*Those entities represented the subsidiaries that company sell to United Brands of Shisha Midco
Limited (the parent company).

29.2 Intercompany Loan (Receivable)

On March 3, 2020, Al Fakher Holding- USA entered into a loan agreement with its parent company, Al
Fakher Holding for Tobacco Trading and Agencies company - Cayman, for a total amount of $26,886,810
(19,062,748). The loan has an interest rate of 5%+2% annually and is due on March 4, 2029. Additionally,
an amount of 2,351,875 Jordanian dinars, representing unpaid interests, was added to the principal of
the loan.

29.3 Intercompany Loans (Payables)

On November 12, 2020, the Al Fakher Holding for Tobacco Trading and Agencies company - Cayman
Island- entered into a loan agreement with its ultimate parent company, United Brands of Shisha Midco
Limited, for an amount of $ 123,213,977. The loan bears interest at the rate of 5% per annum. The loan
is repayable by the company following a demand by the parent company or at the maturity date falling
on November 12, 2026.

On November 23, 2020, the Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and Agencies company entered into a

loan agreement with its ultimate parent company, United Brands of Shisha Midco, for an amount of
$26,498,560. The loan bears interest at the rate of 5% per annum. The loan is repayable by the company
following a demand by the parent company or at the maturity date falling on November 23, 2026.

29.4 Related Parties Transactions

The transactions with related parties included in consolidated financial statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are as follows:
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Type of transac- For the year end December 31,

Jordanian Dinar

tion 2020 2019

Idealism General Trading FZ-LLC Sales - 59,661,338
Al-Fakher Iraq Sales - 41,368,975
Al-Motwaseta Al-Jadeeda Sales - 4,572,479
AL Mithalyeh - Egypt DF Sales - 1,329,272
Al Mithaliyah — CADF Sales - 395,917
Royal Tobacco Group S.A.R.L - LDD Sales - 338,024

- 36,089,900

- As mentioned in note (16) the group obtained a loan from Bank of Jordan, which considered as a
related party.

29.5 Key management remuneration
Executive management short term salaries and remunerations for Egbal Company and it’s subsidiaries
for the year ended December 31, 2020 amounted to JD 6,034,992 (December 31,2019:JD 3,214,320.

30. INCREASING CAPITAL

The General Assembly decided in the extraordinary meeting on June 3, 2018, to increase its capital by
30,000,000 shares through capitalizing retained earnings by an amount of JD 30,000,000 to become the
authorized and paid-up capital of 60,000,000 (1 JD/share).

31. Financial risk management

Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

- Creditrisk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of
capital.

Risk management framework

The Company'’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group’s risk management framework. The board of directors has established the risk management
committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies.
The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims
to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.
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The Group audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by
internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Group’s Cash at banks and
deposits, trade and other receivables and other debit balances.

The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the date of consolidated financial statements was as follows:

Carrying value as at

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Current accounts and deposits at banks 376,499 40,957,628
Trade and other receivables 708,229 61,560,180
Other debit balances 3,672,254 22,837,929
4,756,982 125,355,737

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The demographics of the Company’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry
and country in which customer operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. Geographically there is
concentration of credit risk in the middle east as shown below.

Trade and other receivables
The Group applies IFRS (9) a simplified approach that measures the expected credit loss which uses the
provision of expected aging credit loss for receivables.

- For the purpose of measuring expected credit loss, receivables are gathered based on common
credit risk characteristics and on the maturity of the receivables. The Group has therefore
summarized the expected loss ratios for receivables as approximate and reasonable with respect to
loss ratios for receivables.

- The expected loss ratios have been prepared on the basis of payments / repayments of receivables
during the period from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019 and similar historical credit losses
tested during this period. The historical loss ratios have been adjusted to reflect the impact of
research information on macroeconomic factors, affecting the ability of customers to repay
receivables.

- At 31 December 2020, the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and Due from related party
and contract assets by geographic region was as follows:

eico %



Twenty-ninth Annual Report 2020

Jordanian Dinar
Middle East

USA

Europe

UK

Carrying value as at

2020 2019
708,229 52,970,924
- 3,666,501
- 2,263,318
- 2,659,437
708,229 61,560,180

- The following table provides information about the ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets

for corporate customers as of December 31,2020:

Weighted - average

Gross carrying

Impairment loss

loss rate amount allowance
As of December 31, 2020
Jordanian Dinar
Current -% 708,229 -
More than 90 Day 100% 854,209 854,209
Total %55 1,562,438 854,209

Weighted - average

Gross carrying

Impairment loss

loss rate amount allowance
As of December 31,2019
Jordanian Dinar
Current 0.65% 48,274,211 314,787
1-90 day 1.78% 13,148,555 234,044
More than 90 Day 100% 2,156,754 2,156,754
Total 4.26% 63,579,520 2,705,585

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of JD 377,114 at 31 December 2020 (2019: JD 40,957,628).
The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties, which are
rated BB+ to AAA on S&P ratings. Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a
12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Group considers
that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the
counterparties. The Group uses a similar approach for assessment of ECLs for cash and cash equivalents
to those used for debt securities. The amount of impairment allowance at 31 December 2020 is

immaterial.

100 €ico




Liquidity risk

Twenty-ninth Annual Report 2020

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses,
including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, the Group

maintains line of credit from its bank for sudden cash requirements.

The following are the contracted maturities of financial liabilities:

As of December 31, 2020

Jordanian Dinar

Accounts payable

Other credit balances

Income tax provision

End of service benefit obligation
Intercompany Loans (Payables)
Intercompany Loans (Receivables)

Loans and Bank facilities

As of December 31,2019

Jordanian Dinar

Deferred cheques -Short Term
Accounts payable

Other credit balances

Income tax provision

Payables due to acquisitions
Loans and Bank facilities

End of service benefit obligation
Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liability

Carrying Contractual More than a
Amount Cash Flows less than a year year
45,615 (45,615) (45,615) -
4,913,787 (4,913,787) (4,913,787) -
3,964,826 (3,964,826) (3,964,826) -
349,012 (349,012) - (349,012)
106,844,907 - - (106,844,907)
49,029,529 (49,029,529) (49,029,529) -
9,608,350 (9,608,350) (2,237,518) (7,370,832)
125,726,497 (18,881,590) (60,191,275) (114,564,751)
Carrying Contractual More than a
Amount Cash Flows less than a year year
580,991 (580,991) (580,991) -
13,934,792 (13,934,792) (13,934,792) -
17,264,556 (17,264,556) (17,264,556) -
6,972,104 (6,972,104) (6,972,104) -
32,784,908 (32,784,908) (24,716,224) (8,068,684)
149,263,313 (149,263,313) (81,031,947) (68,231,366)
5,254,041 (5,254,041) - (5,254,041)
12,963,290 (12,963,290) (1,454,600) (11,508,690)
4,205,948 (4,205,948) (4,205,948)
243,223,943 (243,223,943) (145,955,214) (97,268,729)
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- Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — e.g. foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices — will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Group uses derivatives to manage market risks. All such transactions are carried out within
the guidelines set by the risk management committee. Generally, the Group seeks to apply hedge
accounting to manage volatility in profit or loss.

A fundamental review and reform of major interest rate benchmarks is being undertaken globally.
There is uncertainty as to the timing and the methods of transition for replacing existing benchmark
interbank offered rates (IBORs) with alternative rates.

- Currency Risk

Most of the group’s financial assets and liabilities are in Jordanian Dinar, US Dollar and UAE Dirhams,
and due to the fact that the Jordanian Dinar is pegged with US Dollar and UAE Dirhams is pegged
with US Dollar, the Group’s management believes that the foreign currency risk is not material on the
consolidated financial statements.

The following is a summary of the quantitative information related to the Group facing currency risk
provided to management of the Group based on the risk management policy:

31 December 2020

EURO EGP SAR TRY

As of December 31, 2020

Jordanian Dinar

Cash on hand and at banks - - - -
Trade and other receivables - - - -
Other debit balances - - - -
Accounts payable - - - -
Other credit balances - - - -

Payables due to acquisition - - - -

31 December 2019

EURO EGP SAR TRY
As of December 31, 2019
Jordanian Dinar
Cash on hand and at banks 3,131,553 5,658,544 5,303,745 20,308
Trade and other receivables 4,938,827 6,854,494 66,497 -
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Other debit balances 550,921 176,088 4,942,089 117,535
Accounts payable (863,057) (441,606) (78,827) (368,546)
Other credit balances (929,476) (1,296,871) (1,008,739) (463,760)
Payables due to acquisition (11,928,744) - - -
(5,099,976) 10,950,649 9,224,765 (694,463)

- Sensitivity analysis

A 10 % strengthening of the JD against Euro, Egyptian pound, Saudi riyal and Turkish lira at 31
December would have increased / (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed

on the same basis for 2019.

Increased

Decreased

Jordanian Dinar Profit or (loss)

Profit or (loss)

As of December 31, 2020

EURO -
EGP -
SAR -
TRY -

Increased

Decreased

Jordanian Dinar Profit or (loss)

Profit or (loss)

As of December 31, 2019

EURO (509,998)
EGP 1,095,065
SAR 922,477
TRY (69,446)

- Interest rate risk

509,998
(1,095,065)
(922,477)
69,446

At the reporting date of consolidated financial statements, the interest rate profile of the Group’s

interest-bearing financial instruments was as follows:

As of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Fixed Rate Instruments:

Financial Assets 21,414,623 728,174
Variable rate instrument

Financial Liabilities (116,453,257) (149,263,313)
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- Other market price risk

Equity price risk arises from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income held for
meeting partially the unfunded portion of the Group’s obligations as well as investments at fair value
through profit or loss. Management of the Group monitors the mix of debt and equity securities in its
investment portfolio based on market indices. Material investments within the portfolio are managed
on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the Risk Management Committee.

Share price risk

A change of 5% in fair value of the securities at the consolidated financial statements date would have
increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that
all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Equity

Jordanian Dinar. 5% 5%
As of December 31, 2020 Increase Decrease
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 7,526 (7,526)

7,526 (7,526)
As of December 31, 2019
Jordanian Dinar 7,526 (7,526)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 7,526 (7,526)

32. Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different
levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: valuation method can be determined either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived
from prices). This level includes instruments valuated based on:

Prices quoted in active markets for similar instruments or through the use of valuation model that
includes inputs that can be traced to markets, these inputs good be defend directly or indirectly.
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

- Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurrent basis:
The Group measures below assets and liabilities at fair value on a non-recurrent basis

__BookValue Fair Value
- i Level level level
Jordanian Dinar FYOCI equity e(ﬁ e{;L)e e‘;e
December 31, 2020
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through state-
ment of other comprehensive income 150,525 - 150,525 -
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__BookValue Fair Value
FVOCI - equit Level I level
Jordanian Dinar . quity e‘ﬁ le(:zL)e e‘)BL)e
December 31,2019
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through state-
ment of other comprehensive income 150,525 - 150,525 -

* Fair value in accordance with level (2)

This item represents the cost of financial assets through other comprehensive income that is not listed
in financial markets for the Group portion in North manufacturing Company. The Group performed test
over the fair value for this item using Net asset value of the last available audited financial statements,
the company’s management believes that this is the most convenient way to measure the fair value of
the investment due to the lack of updated information on the market value of this investment

- Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value:
These financial instruments are measured at amortized cost and the fair value of these instruments do
not differ significantly from their amortized cost.

Book Value Fair Value

Financial assets Other financial

Jordanian Dinar ized liabilities _Level(1) _Level(2) _Level(3)

December 31,2020

Financial assets

Cash on hand and at banks 377,114 - - - -
Trade and other receivables 708,229 - - - -
Other debit balances 6,271,815

Loan from related party 21,414,623

Due from related party 139,056,867

Financial liabilities

End of service benefit obligation - (349,012) - - -
Due to related parties - (49,029,529) - - -
Account payable - (45,615) - - R
Other credit balances - (4,913,787) - - -
Loans to related parties - (106,844,907) - - R
Loans and Bank facilities - (9,608,350) - - R
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Jordanian Dinar

December 31, 2019
Financial assets

Cash on hand and at banks
Trade and other receivables
Other debit balances

Financial liabilities

Deferred cheques
Accounts payable

Other credit balances
Payables due to acquisition
Loans and Bank facilities

Finance lease liabilities

Book Value

Financial assets

ized liabiliti

41,435,345
61,560,180
20,527,911

Other financial

(580,991)
(13,934,792)
(17,264,556)
(31,815,054)

(149,263,313)
(12,963,290)

Fair Value

_level(1) _ Level(2) _ Level(3)

- (149,263,313) -
- (12,963,290) -

There are no transfers between the levels until the end of the financial year ended as of December 31,

2020.

Management believes that the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities appearing in the
financial statements approximate to the fair values.
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33. Subsequent event

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group has received an offer to sell its subsidiary, Spectrum
International for Renewable Energy at a price of JD 1,935,570. The Board of directors have approved to
sell the company in a board meeting held on 23 June 2021. The transaction is now in the last stages of
due diligence and it is expected that a sale and purchase agreement will be signed during 2023.

34. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

During the preparation of the current year financial statements, a number of material prior period errors

and omissions were identified and are corrected by restating the comparative information as presented

in these financial statements. The following prior period restatements are reflected throughout

the comparative information presented, including the income statement, balance sheet, cash flow

statement and affected notes.

(@ Revision to purchase price allocation relating to the acquisition of Sierra Network
Inc.

The group acquired its main US distributor, Sierra Network Inc. on 4 December 2017 for $54.5m and

recognised goodwill of $52.9m representing the difference between the consideration paid and

the fair value of the net assets acquired. However, a Purchase Price Allocation (“PPA”) analysis was

not performed in 2017 and as such no other intangibles assets were separately identified. A PPA

exercise for the business acquired in December 2017 has been undertaken in 2020 resulting in the
following restatement amounts:

e Intangible asset relating to customer relationships of JD 19,372,716 at 4 December 2017 were
recognised separately with a corresponding adjusting entry to reduce goodwill.

e A deferred tax liability arising on the recognition of the above customer relationship intangibles
of JD 4,726,903 was recognised. This deferred tax liability reduces the net assets acquired on
acquisition at 4 December 2017 and therefore increases the resulting goodwill recognised.

e Amortisation on identified customer relationship intangibles of JD 1,291,514 per annum.

e Unwind of the deferred tax liability each year, recorded through the tax charge.

e Afurther restatement amount arises from errors in calculating the consideration payable: the
estimated fair value of contingent consideration was overstated as there were short term targets
that were clearly not achievable at the acquisition date, and a portion of the purchase price in
accordance with the sale and purchase agreement, which has not yet been paid, was missed in
error. Consideration was understated by net JD 969,854 leading to an increased amount payable
on acquisitions and an increase in goodwill recognised on acquisition.

The above error has been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items

for prior periods. The following pages summarise the impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements on both the December 31, 2019 and January 1, 2019 prior periods, and is summarised as
follows:

31 December 2019:

- Reduction of opening retained earnings at 1 January 2019 by JD 2,795,912.

- Reduce’Intangible assets’by JD 1,319,193, being accumulated amortisation to 31 December 2019 of
JD 2,583,028, plus JD 824,682 related to adjustments to reduce consideration and recognition of a
deferred tax liability of JD 4,726,903.

- Recognition of amortisation of JD 1,291,514 reducing profit and intangible assets accordingly.

- Recognition of deferred tax liability of JD 4,161,730.

- Recognition of additional consideration payable of JD 969,854.
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Retained earnings as at 31 December 2019 has reduced by JD 3,812,391resulting from the above
restatements reflecting the accumulated amortisation of JD 2,583,028, recognition of costs that
were incorrectly included in consideration of JD 1,794,379 and reduce by deferred tax charges for
2019 totalling JD 275,035 and by a 2017 deferred tax charge of JD 289,981.

January 1,2019:

Customer relationships intangible asset of JD 19,372,716 recognised separately within intangibles.
Recognition of amortisation of JD 1,291,514 reducing profit and intangible assets accordingly.
Recognition of deferred tax liability of JD 4,436,766.

Reduction of consideration payable of JD 969,854 and recognition of costs that were incorrectly
included in consideration of JD 1,504,398.

Retained earnings as at January 1,2019 has reduced by 2,795,912 resulting from the above
restatements reflecting the accumulated amortisation of JD 1,291,514 and reversal of the incorrect
consideration of JD 1,794,379 and reduce by a 2017 deferred tax charge of JD 289,981.

The effect of the restatement and reclassification are as mentioned in the table below:

December 31, 2019
A jousl
Jordanian Dinar s previously Restatement Restated
reported
Statement of financial position:
Intangible assets 216,406,577 1,319,193 217,725,770
Deferred Tax Asset 1,269,851 44,218 1,314,069
Total assets 217,676,428 1,363,411 219,039,839
Retained earnings (116,453,341) 3,812,391 (112,640,950)
Total Equity (116,453,341) 3,812,391 (112,640,950)
Payables due to acquisition (23,746,370) (969,854) (24,716,224)
Deferred tax liabilities - (4,205,948) (4,205,948)
Total libilities (23,746,370) (5,175,802) (28,922,172)
Statement of profit or loss
Administrative expenses 33,319,682 1,291,514 34,611,196
Income tax expense 7,725,936 (275,035) 7,450,901
Total comprehensive income for the year 41,045,618 1,016,479 42,062,097
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Statement of financial position:

Intangible assets

Deferred Tax Asset

Total assets

Retained earnings

Total Equity

Payables due to acquisition
Deferred tax liabilities

Total libilities
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January 1, 2019
Asr:::’::e:l:ly Restatement Restated
182,297,000 2,610,708 184,907,708
82,941 47,005 129,946
182,379,941 2,657,713 185,037,654
(71,056,432) 2,795,912 (68,260,520)
(71,056,432) 2,795,912 (68,260,520)
(4,183,378) (969,854) (5,153,232)
- (4,483,771) (4,483,771)
(4,183,378) (5,453,625) (9,637,003)
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